Public Document Pack

Telford & Wrekin Protect, care and invest
Co-operative Council to create a better borough

Borough of Telford and Wrekin

Planning Committee
Wednesday 9 July 2025
6.00 pm

Council Chamber, Third Floor, Southwater One, Telford, TF3 4JG

Democratic Services:

Media Enquiries:

Jayne Clarke 01952 383205

Corporate Communications 01952 382406

Committee Members:

Councillors S JReynolds (Chair), A S Jhawar (Vice-Chair),
F Doran, N A Dugmore, A RHEngland, S Handley, G Luter,
N Page, P J Scott and T L B Janke

Substitutes Councillors S Bentley, K T Blundell,
C Chikandamina, G H Cook, N A M England, R Sahota and
J Thompson

Agenda Page
1.0 Apologies for Absence
2.0 Declarations of Interest
3.0 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 3-6

To confirm the minutes of the previous meeting held on 26 March 2025.

4.0 Deferred/Withdrawn Applications

50 Site Visits

6.0 Terms of Reference 2025/26 7-12

7.0 Planning Applications for Determination 13-14

Page 1



Please note that the order in which applications are heard may be changed at
the meeting. If Members have queries about any of the applications, they are
requested to raise them with the relevant Planning Officer prior to the
Committee meeting.

7.1 TWC/2025/0022 - Land off, Arleston Lane (South side), Arleston, 15 -50
Telford, Shropshire

7.2 TWC/2025/0314 - Land adjacent Oak View, Sugden Lane, Sugden, 51 - 66
Telford, Shropshire

If you are reading these papers on an electronic device you have saved the Council
£15.22 and saved 6.1kg of CO2, based on average agenda printing costs for the 2022/23
municipal year.

Page 2



Agenda Iltem 3

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Minutes of a meeting of the Planning Committee held on Wednesday 26
March 2025 at 6.00 pm in Council Chamber, Third Floor, Southwater
One, Telford, TE3 4JG

Present: Councillors S J Reynolds (Chair), G H Cook, F Doran,
N A Dugmore, A R H England, T L B Janke, J Jones, P J Scott, S Handley (as
substitute for G Luter) and J Thompson (as substitute for A S Jhawar)

In Attendance: A Gittins (Area Team Planning Manager - West), S Hardwick
(Lead Lawyer: Litigation & Regulatory), J Clarke (Senior Democracy Officer
(Demaocracy)), C Edgington (Planning Officer) and J Finnigan (Assistant
Highways Engineer)

Apologies: Councillors G Luter and A S Jhawar

PC29 Declarations of Interest

None.

PC30 Minutes of the Previous Meeting

It had been noted that there was a typographical error within the minutes of 11
December 2024, at item PC15, whereby the resolution read that “the minutes
of the meeting held on 11 December 2024 be confirmed and signed by the
Chair”. This date should have read “23 October 2024”.

Members proposed, seconded and agreed amendment of the date in the
minutes of the 11 December to reflect that the minutes of the meeting held on
23 October 2024 be signed and confirmed by the Chair.

The Committee were asked to approve the amended minutes of the 11
December 2024 and the minutes of the meeting held on 5 February 2025.

Upon being put to the vote it was, unanimously:
RESOLVED - that the minutes of the meeting of the Planning
Committees held on 11 December 2024 and 5 February 2025 be

confirmed and signed by the Chair.

PC31 Deferred/Withdrawn Applications

None.
PC32 Site Visits

None.

Page 3



PC33 Planning Applications for Determination

Members had received a schedule of planning applications to be determined
by the Committee and fully considered each report.

PC34 TWC/2024/0697 - Barns rear of 28 Woodhouse Lane,
Horsehay, Telford, Shropshire

This was an application for the conversion of 2no. barns to 2no. dwellings at
Barns to the rear of 28 Woodhouse Lane, Horsehay, Telford, Shropshire.

Dawley Hamlets Parish Council had requested that the application be
determined by the Planning Committee.

The Planning Officer set out that the application sought full planning
permission for the conversion of 2 barns to the rear of the application site.

Clir Z Hannington, Dawley Hamlets Parish Council, spoke against the
application and raised concerns regarding poor road infrastructure and parked
cars which exacerbated the issues, poor visibility, increased traffic, noise, loss
of privacy, the inadequacy of the footings of the barns which may need
underpinning, drainage and the impact on pedestrians and the safety of
residents. Further concerns were raised in regards to the change in dynamics
of the road following the closure of the shop and the impact the new proposal
would have on the surrounding highway network.

Mr J Harris, Applicant’'s Agent, spoke in favour of the application and
highlighted that there were no objections to the application from technical
consultees. The conversion of the barn did not increase the height or volume
of the current buildings and the proximity to existing properties remained the
same. In relation to parking, ten parking spaces had now been proposed for
use by number 27 and 28 and would also serve the barns. Porous materials
would be used to surface the car park which would mitigate any additional rain
water. It was suggested that a “H” bar be implemented to ensure that access
was maintained. Additional highways impact had been assessed as minimal
and the visibility splays acceptable. The application brought forward existing
buildings which would contribute to the Local Plan housing target and there
was a biodiversity net gain of 10%. There were no technical grounds to
refuse the application.

The Planning Officer informed Members that the application was in the built
up area where the principle of development was considered acceptable. The
existing barns would be converted into dwellings which fell modestly behind
the build line and were currently in an existing redundant state and it was an
effective reuse of non-designated heritage assets. The site was large enough
to accommodate the amenity space and the off road parking scheme and was
not considered to be overdevelopment. Permitted development rights would
be removed. The existing buildings were capable of conversion without
modification with some new windows and doors and the design was
considered in keeping with the local character and appearance. Current

Page 4



landscaping and boundary treatments would remain and would be suitably
conditioned. Further landscaping details and a landscaping management plan
would be required. Ten parking spaces had been demonstrated with a turning
area and an area for delivery vehicles, and the spaces allowed sufficient
turning area to exit in a forward gear. External alterations were minimal and it
was not considered to be detrimental or harmful to neighbouring properties.
Structural stability would be assessed further by building regulations and a
construction management plan would be required. The application complied
with the NPPF and there were no technical or highway reasons to refuse the
application. A tree survey had been submitted and the officers were satisfied
there would be no significant harm. Ecology and Drainage Officers had been
consulted and were supportive subject to conditions. All material planning
considerations had been addressed and there were no technical reasons to
refuse the application.

During the debate some Members considered that the application aligned
perfectly to sustainability by using existing structures to repurpose the barns.
The application did not affect the countryside and supported the Council’s
Housing Plan. It was felt that most of the objections had been dealt with and
that the application would not present any more difficulties than when the
buildings were formerly used as a shop and post office. Questions were
raised in respect of the reasons for the 2017 application being refused and if
there would be any adverse effects on neighbouring properties in relation to
the excavation of the footings. It was asked if a Traffic Regulation Order
(TRO) could be introduced, double yellow lines outside number 29 or a mirror
to improve visibility, whether there had been an accident survey undertaken
and whether the access and egress to the site was currently being used.

The Planning Officer confirmed that the application in 2017 had been refused
due to it being a request for two new build dwellings at the south of the site.
Vehicles were currently using the existing access and egress.

The Highways Officer explained to Members that on street parking could
create traffic issues but this was not an impact due to the amount of trips from
the existing and proposed developments. It was suggested that a “H” bar
could be introduced by number 29 which would allow a measure of protection.
In relation to double yellow lines or a TRO, it was likely that a TRO would
restrict on street parking for adjacent residents and was not recommended.
The crash data from the past 15 years had shown no accidents had occurred
on the lane, but that there had been an incident outside of the Travellers Joy
in 2020.

On being put to the vote it was, by a majority/unanimously:
RESOLVED - that delegated authority be granted to the Development
Management Service Delivery to grant full planning permission subject

to the following:

a) the conditions and informatives (with authority to finalise
conditions) and reasons for approval to be delegated to

Page 5



Development Management Service Delivery Manager as set out in
the report.

The meeting ended at 6.34 pm

Chairman:

Date: Wednesday 9 July 2025

Page 6



Agenda Iltem 6

Telford & Wrekin Protect, care and invest
Co-operative Council to create a better borough

Borough of Telford and Wrekin

Planning Committee
Wednesday 9 July 2025
Terms of Reference 2025/26

Cabinet Member: Cllr Zona Hannington - Cabinet Member: Finance,

Governance and Customer Services

Lead Director: Anthea Lowe - Director: Policy & Governance

Service Area: Policy & Governance

Report Author: Ashley Hickman — Democracy & Scrutiny Assistant

Officer Contact Tel: 01952 382589 Email: ashley.hickmanl@telford.gov.uk
Details:

Wards Affected: All Wards

Key Decision: Not Key Decision

Forward Plan: Not Applicable

Report considered by: Planning Committee — 9 July 2025

1.0

11

2.0

2.1

3.0

3.1

Recommendations for decision/noting:

It is recommended that the Planning Committee:
Agree and reconfirm the Terms of Reference set out at Appendix A.

Purpose of Report

To set out the Terms of References for the Planning Committee as outlined in
Appendix A of the report.

Background
The Constitution requires that Full Council should agree at its Annual Meeting the

Terms of Reference for each of its Committees to enable the Council to efficiently
conduct its business.

Page 7



Terms of Reference 2025/26

3.2

3.3

4.0
4.1

5.0

5.1

6.0
6.1

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

10.0

10.1

11.0

111

At the Annual Meeting of the Council on 15 May 2025, Full Council delegated
authority to each Committee to review its own Terms of Reference.

The Terms of Reference forms part of the Constitution and was approved by Full
Council in that context on 3 March 2022.

Summary of main proposals

For the Planning Commmittee to review and reconfirm its Terms of Reference as
set out at Appendix A.

Alternative Options

There are no alternative options arising from this report.
Key Risks

There are no key risks arising from this report.

Council Priorities

A community-focussed, innovative council providing efficient, effective and quality
services.

Financial Implications

Good governance processes support value for money in ensuring economy,
efficient and effectiveness in the Council’s decision making and processes. There
are no Financial Implications arising from this report.

Legal and HR Implications

The Constitution requires that Full Council should agree at its Annual Meeting the
Terms of Reference for each of its Committees. Full Council delegated authority to
each Committee to review its own Terms of Reference.

The Terms of Reference should provide clarity on the election of the chair and
Vice-Chair and once confirmed, the Monitoring Officer will update the Constitution.
There are no direct legal implications arising from this report.

There are no HR implications directly arising from this report.

Ward Implications

There are no ward implications arising from this report.

Health, Social and Economic Implications

There are no health, social and economic implications arising from this report.

2
Page 8



Terms of Reference 2025/26

12.0 Equality and Diversity Implications
12.1 There are no equality and diversity implications arising from this report.
13.0 Climate Change, Biodiversity and Environmental Implications

13.1 There are no climate change, Biodiversity and environmental implications arising
from this report.

14.0 Background Papers

1 Council Constitution November 2023.pdf

15.0 Appendices
A Planning Committee Terms of Reference 2025/26

16.0 Report Sign Off

Signed off by Date sent Date signed off Initials
Legal 14/05/2025 21/05/2025 SH
Finance 14/05/2025 22/05/2025 AM

3
Page 9


https://democracy.telford.gov.uk/documents/s20274/Council%20Constitution%20November%202023.pdf

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

Planning Committee — Terms of Reference and Procedure

The Committee has the responsibility and delegated powers to act on behalf of
the Council in respect of town and country planning matters and other
associated functions within the Borough as follows.

Town and Country Planning and Development Control functions
1. As setoutin Schedule 1 to the Local Authorities (Functions and
Responsibilities)(England) Regulations 2000/2853 (as amended).

Public Rights of Way functions
2. As setout in Schedule 1 to the Local Authorities (Functions and
Responsibilities)(England) Regulations 2000/2853 (as amended).

Functions in relation to hedgerows and the preservation of trees
3. Assetoutin schedule 1 of the Local Authorities (Functions and
Responsibilities)(England) Regulations 2000/2853 (as amended).

Functions in relation to highways
4.  As set outin Schedule 1 to the Local Authorities (Functions and
Responsibilities)(England) Regulations 2000/2853 (as amended).

General
5.  Annually review their effectiveness and their terms of reference.

PROCEDURE

a) As ageneral rule the Council Procedure Rules govern the way that committees
operate but these, with the exception of paragraph 14 of the Council Procedure
Rules, may be varied or suspended at the discretion of the Chairman of the
Committee in the interests of efficient and effective management of the
committee.

b) Separate procedures will apply when the committee is undertaking
administrative or quasi-judicial functions to ensure a fair hearing.

Page 11




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

PLANNING COMMITTEE
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS

The Background Papers taken into account when considering planning applications
on this list include all or some of the following items. Items 1 to 4 are included on the
file for each individual application.

1. Application: includes the application form, certificate under Section 65 of the
Town and Country Planning Act, 1990, plans, and any further supporting
information submitted with the application.

2. Further correspondence with applicant: includes any amendments to the
application — including any letters to the applicant/agent with respect to the
application and any further correspondence submitted by the applicant/agent,
together with any revised details and/or plans.

3. Letters from Statutory Bodies: includes any relevant letters to and from the
Parish Councils, Departments of Telford & Wrekin Council, Water Authorities
and other public bodies and societies.

4. Letters from Private Individuals: includes any relevant letters to and from
members of the public with respect to the application, unless the writers have
asked that their views are not reported publicly.

5. Statutory Plans and Informal Policy Documents: some or all of the following
documents will comprise general background papers taken into account in
considering planning applications in the administrative area of Telford and
Wrekin (“Telford and Wrekin”)

a) Telford & Wrekin Local Plan 2011-2031 (adopted 11™ January 2018)
including any Neighbourhood Plans

b) Telford and Wrekin Supplementary Planning Documents:
e Design for Community Safety SPD (adopted June 2008);
e Telecommunications Development SPD (adopted May 2009); and
e Shop Fronts, Signage and Design Guidance in Conservation Areas

SPD (adopted April 2012)

C) Government Planning Guidance — National Planning Policy Framework
(NPPF), Planning Practice Guidance and Circulars

d) Town and Country Planning legislation, case law and other planning
decisions and articles

6. Past decision notices and reports referred to in specific reports.

7. The following additional documents (if appropriate):-

Telford & Wrekin
a co-operative C OUNCIL

council

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 7a

TWC/2025/0022

Land off, Arleston Lane (South side), Arleston, Telford, Shropshire

Outline planning application for the delivery up to 250 dwellings (Use Class C3) with
all matters reserved

APPLICANT RECEIVED
Telford and Wrekin Council and Homes England, 15/01/2025
PARISH WARD
Lawley and Overdale Lawley

THIS APPLICATION HAS BEEN REFERRED TO PLANNING COMMITTEE AT
THE REQUEST OF CLLR’S. MARK BOYLAN AND LAWLEY AND OVERDALE
PARISH COUNCIL

Online Planning File:
https://secure.telford.gov.uk/planning/pa-
applicationsummary.aspx?applicationnumber=TWC/2025/0022

1.0 SUMMARY RECOMMENDATION

1.1 Itis recommended that the Committee RESOLVE DELEGATED AUTHORITY
be GRANTED to the Development Management Service Delivery Manager to
GRANT OUTLINE PLANNING PERMISSION subject to National Highways
Removing their Holding Response, a Section 106 Agreement, Condition(s)
and Informative(s).

2.0 SITE AND SURROUNDINGS

2.1 The Site is located within the West of Telford and lies within the Ward of
Lawley.

2.2  The site covers an area of approximately 15.26 ha and is known as ‘Lawley
West'. Arleston Lane, a narrow single-track lane, passes through the site,
providing access from existing development in the South to the existing
dwellings located to the North and beyond to the neighbourhood of Arleston.
The Wrekin Way Public Right of Way (PRoW) dissects the centre of the site
providing access to Dawley Road to the West. The PRoW travels through the
South-East of the site, passing over Lawley Drive to connect to existing
development in the East.

2.3 The site comprises of mostly greenfield land with some areas of significant
tree coverage. These are predominantly located across the central band of
the site, enclosing a section of the PRoW.

2.4  The site previously operated as a coal mine, which was later backfilled. Part
of the South-Eastern portion of the site is currently rented to agricultural
tenants who use the land to keep horses. Three existing dwellings border the
Eastern boundary of the site along Arleston Lane, and there are several
dwellings along the Southern boundary of Glendale and Pepper Mill.

Page 15


https://secure.telford.gov.uk/planning/pa-applicationsummary.aspx?applicationnumber=TWC/2025/0022
https://secure.telford.gov.uk/planning/pa-applicationsummary.aspx?applicationnumber=TWC/2025/0022

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

A watercourse known as ‘Ketley Brook’ runs along part of the South-Western
boundary and flows in a northerly direction. Further vegetation and greenfield
land dominate the North-Western boundary. The Western boundary
comprises existing woodland and is partly bordered by a disused industrial
site that was associated with previous coal mining activities.

The topography varies across the site, sloping significantly from the Southern
boundary down towards the North-Western boundary. The South-Eastern
parcel of land slopes down from Arleston Lane towards Lawley Drive to the
East. In the South-East, the site consists of a gentler slope, sloping towards
the Eastern boundary where the site meets Lawley Drive. To the North-
Western part of the site, the land initially consists of a steep slope away from
Arleston Lane, which then fades out to a gentle, shallow slope towards the
North-Western boundary. At the Northern end of the site there is a shallow,
gentle slope down towards the Northern site boundary. As is discussed later
within this report, the topography of the site, alongside geotechnical
considerations, likely mean that significant engineering operations would be
required in order to achieve the proposed number of residential units, which
would be informed at a later stage by the submission of additional reports.

The site is situated within the urban area of Telford as designated in the
Telford and Wrekin Local Plan Policies Map. The site will extend the new
Lawley Village development in the South-West direction of the Telford urban
area. Immediately to the East of the site is Lawley Drive/A5223, a major road
connecting the new developments to the Northern and Eastern suburbs of
Telford. Beyond Lawley Drive to the East, the land is dominated by similar
residential developments. Residential development is the main land use of
properties located to the South of the site that comprise earlier development
phases, including Lawley Primary School and Lawley Village Green. To the
North of the site, there are several existing dwellings and further greenfield
land. To the North-West of the site, there is a disused industrial site, a small
pond, and the Ketley Brook. Beyond the brook, there is a small Caravan Park
and further dwellings surrounded by greenfield land, which are accessed via
Dawley Road.

The site is within proximity to some existing facilities erected as part of earlier
Lawley developments, including Lawley Primary School and Lawley
Community Centre immediately to the South of the site, and a Nursery to the
South-East of the site. Wrekin Way footpath, which passes over a footbridge
over Lawley Drive, provides pedestrian access to a public green space,
including ponds, a play area and open space to the East. Lawley’s ‘Local
Centre’ is located to the South-East of the site, which consists of a large
supermarket, several retail and hospitality units, an integrated medical
practice and pharmacy, a gym, a pub, a place of worship, Lawley Village
Primary Academy School, and further Public Open Space.

The Site is served by Public Transport connections. A bus route operated by

Arriva Bus currently serves a stop located on Glendale on the Southern
boundary of the site. The existing Wrekin Way footpath provides a pedestrian

Page 16



2.10

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

connection between the site and existing residential and green space in the
East, as well as connecting future residents to employment opportunities in
Lawley Village. The bus services that serves Lawley Village connects the area
to other parts of Telford where further employment opportunities can be
accessed.

To the South of the site, amongst the existing development, the Lawley
Village Green affords residents some green space for physical activities.
Beyond this area, there is a BMX Track and the Lawley and Overdale
Community Garden.

APPLICATION DETAILS

This application seeks Outline Planning Permission for the delivery of up to
250n0. dwellings (Use Class C3) with all Matters Reserved.

Final details of the layout, scale, access, landscape, and appearance of the
development would be subject to a Reserved Matters Application. The design
parameters for which approval is sought include:

- Development Parcels Plan;
- Access and Circulation Plan;
- Green and Blue Infrastructure Plan.

An lllustrative Masterplan has been submitted to demonstrate how the site
could achieve up to 250 dwellings. It is highlighted that this plan is indicative
only and that full details of the proposed layout (alongside the other reserved
matters) would be considered during a Reserved Matters application.

The illustrative masterplan shows a development of up to 250 new dwellings
across the site, indicatively noting the following dwelling mixes:

- 114 x 2-bed;
- 80 x 3-bed;
- 56 x 4-bed.

The Agent has confirmed that the site will deliver 25% Affordable Housing as
required by Local Plan Policy HO5 — with no less than 25% of that provision
as First Homes and the remaining 75% of that provision to be Social or
Affordable Rented. This would result in 63no. dwellings being reserved for
affordable housing. The mix and location of affordable dwellings are to be
determined at the Reserved Matters Stage.

Page 17



RELEVANT HISTORY

EIA/2023/0002 - Outline Application for the erection of up to 250n0. dwellings
with all Matters Reserved - Environmental Impact Assessment dated 05
January 2024

RELEVANT POLICY DOCUMENTS

National Guidance:

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

Local Development Plan:

Telford & Wrekin Local Plan 2011-2031:

SP1: Telford

SP4: Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
HO1: Housing Requirement

HO2: Housing Site Allocations

HO4: Housing Mix

HOS5: Affordable Housing Thresholds and Percentages
HOG6: Delivery of Affordable Housing

NEL1: Biodiversity & Geodiversity

NE2: Trees, Hedgerows & Woodlands

NE5: Management and Maintenance of Public Open Space
C3: Impact of Development on Highways

C4: Design of Roads and Streets

C5: Design of Parking

BEL1: Design Criteria

BES8: Archaeology and Scheduled Ancient Monuments
BE9: Land Stability

BE10: Land Contamination

ER2: Mineral Safeguarding

ER8: Waste Planning for Residential Developments
ER11: Sewage Systems and Water Quality

ER12: Flood Risk Management

Telford & Wrekin Local Plan 2020-2040 (Regulation 19 Version):
The Council are currently at the Regulation 19 Stage of the Local Plan Review
and therefore, limited weight will be given to the relevant policies within this

document. The following policies are considered to be of relevance:

S2: Nature Conservation

Page 18



6.0

6.1

6.2

S4: Housing Delivery Strategy

S5: Mitigating and Adapting to Climate Change

S6: Healthy Stronger Communities

S7: Developer Contributions and Infrastructure Delivery
CC1: Sustainable Construction and Carbon Reduction
CC2: Renewable Energy in Developments

CC4: Water re-use, conservation efficiency and quality
CC5: Flood Risk Management and Sustainable Drainage Systems
CC6: Managing Air Quality

NEL1: Biodiversity and Geodiversity

NE2: Trees, Hedgerows and Woodlands

NE3: Biodiversity Net Gain

NE4: Developing Greening Factor

HO1: Housing Allocations

HO3: Housing Mix and Quality

HO4: Affordable Housing Requirements

HOS5: Affordable Housing Delivery

DD1: Design Criteria

DD2: Housing Development Design

DD5: Waste Planning for Residential Developments
ST1: Sustainable Travel

ST3: Impact of Development on Highways

ST4: Design of Roads and Streets

ST5: Electric Vehicle (EV) Infrastructure and Parking Design
CI3: Provision and Management of Public Open Spaces
HE7: Scheduled Monuments and Archaeology

ML1: Mineral Safeguarding

ML4: Land Stability

ML5: Land Contamination

Other Documents:

First Homes Policy Position Statement
Homes for All SPD
Climate Change Guidance for Development SPD

SUMMARY OF CONSULTATION RESPONSES

Comments received from statutory consultees can be viewed in full on the
planning file, but key points have been summarised as follows:

Lawley & Overdale Parish Council: Object:

- Recognises the need for Affordable Housing;

Page 19



6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

Shares residents’ concerns regarding the increase in traffic along Glendale
and Peppermill, not just during the school drop off and collection times;
whilst the Transport Assessment (TA) for the development concludes that
there are no existing safety concerns which would be exacerbated by the
proposed development, the Parish Council agrees with the comments and
recommendations made by the National Highways on this application and
believes additional supporting information is required;

Reservations regarding construction traffic navigating the highway to the
site and has experience of the problems this can bring from other parts of
the area, where the highway is much wider and less busy - of extra
concern given that the development is by a school - believes consideration
should be given to any proposed Traffic Regulation Orders intended for
the area and a survey be conducted on the impact these could have on
congestion and vehicle movement and parking and would welcome input
from the local Highway department on this;

Proposed one-way system along part of Arleston Lane will be
unenforceable, and has the potential to confuse drivers.

Cllr. Luke Lewis: Object:

Concerns over the proposed road layout, access points, one-way system,
and pedestrian area, which are considered to be unsafe and poorly
planned and will impact not only nearby residents but also surrounding
villages, the local school, and wider road networks;

Concerns that the Local Highways Authority and National Highways have
not supported the proposal;

Request that the application is heard at Planning Committee and that
Members undertake a Site Visit.

Clir. Erin Aston: Object:

No detailed objections provided but confirmed that the views raised by
residents, the Parish Council and other Clirs are echoed. Requested that
the application is heard at Planning Committee and requested that
Members visit the site.

Cllr. Zona Hannington: Object:

Concern over the proposed one-way system in respect of enforceability
and impact on neighbours;

Concerns over the increase in traffic on an already congested road;
Request that the application is heard at Planning Committee and
requested that a site visit is undertaken.

TWC Healthy Spaces: Support subject to Conditions(s):

Request Condition(s) in respect of landscaping and a landscape
management plan. Furthermore, request a Financial Contribution of
£650.00 per dwelling for the upgrade and enhancement of local sport and

Page 20



6.7

6.8

recreational spaces (with the final amount payable in this respect to be
confirmed upon receipt of a Reserved Matters application, which confirms
the number of dwellings proposed).

TWC Ecology: Support subject to Condition(s):

Habitat Monitoring and Management Plan

Ecological Survey - in accordance with the EclA;
Erection of Artificial Nesting/Roosting Boxes;
Pre-commencement inspection - Badgers;

Ecological Mitigation Strategy and Method Statement.

TWC Highways: No Objection subject to the following summarised

Condition(s) and s.106 Financial Contribution(s):

Condition(s):

1.

9.

Reserved Matters Consent to include a car park, with provision of a
minimum of 40 spaces for the unrestricted use of vehicles associated with
Lawley Primary School at drop off and pick up periods;

Reserved Matters Consent to include a diversion of Arleston Lane onto the
new development spine road, including a restriction of motor vehicles;
Reserved Matters Consent to include provision of new parking to offset
any of that lost in the vicinity of No’s. 44-50 Pepper Mill and No.1 Yew
Tree Moor;

Updated Travel Plan;

Construction of any new estate street shall not be commenced until an
estate street phasing and completion plan has been submitted to and
approved;

Construction of any new streets shall not be commenced until details of
the proposed arrangements for future management and maintenance of
the proposed streets within the development have been submitted to and
approved;

Construction of any new estate street to be adopted shall not be
commenced until full engineering details have been submitted to and
approved in writing;

Construction of any new estate street shall not be commenced until full
details of the proposed street tree locations, species and planting method
have been submitted to and approved,

Private roadway to be constructed in accordance with details;

10. Site Environmental Management Plan (SEMP).

s.106 Financial Contribution(s):

£35,000 towards the upgrade of the Wrekin Way from Dawley Road to the
development area. The upgrade will provide a standard which is suitable
for pedestrians, wheelchairs, buggies and cycles (approx. 450 metres). To
be paid prior to the commencement of development, to be index linked;

£250,000 towards the remodelling and an increase in effectiveness of the
existing one way road between Pepper Mill and Lawley Primary School, in

Page 21



6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

6.13

6.14

6.15

order to formalise and materially increase the drop off and pick up car
parking capacity available. The works are to include robust traffic and non-
resident parking controls on Pepper Mill, Church Croft, Yew Tree Moor
and Clips Moor and will also assist in the implementation of a speed limit
reduction, a HGV weight limit and a no access for motor vehicles, except
for access, restriction on Arleston Lane if necessary. To be paid prior to
the commencement of development, is to be index linked;
- £5,000 towards Travel Plan Monitoring for 5-years.

Integrated Care Board (ICB): Support subject to Condition(s):

- Requested a Financial Contribution of £294.00 per bed space towards
development of Primary Care Infrastructure, with the final amount payable
to be confirmed upon receipt of a Reserved Matters application, confirming
the number and break-down of proposed dwellings.

TWC Drainage: Support subject to Condition in respect of:

- Requiring a scheme for both foul and surface water drainage.

TWC Geotechs: Comment:

- Consider the development is feasible in principle - it is considered that
significant earthworks will likely need to be required in order to achieve the
requisite topography for the site in order to achieve the required gradients
for roads, alongside retaining features. The following documentation will
be required to form part of a subsequent Reserved Matters Application:

0] Full settlement calculations based on the final design layout and
levels. These calculations shall include high wall related
differential analyses and loads associated with increased ground
levels (should increased levels be required);

(i) Mining constraints mitigation proposals based on the final
design layout and levels;

(i) A ground gas mitigation design;

(iv) If any retaining structures are to be built, a full set of
calculations.

Environment Agency: Does not fall within the Scope for Consultation

West Mercia Police: Comment:

Provide general advice on how a scheme could be designed to reduce
potential crime.

The Coal Authority: No Objection:

- Request Condition(s) relating to further intrusive site investigations.

Shropshire Fire Service: Comment:

Page 22



6.16

6.17

6.18

6.19

6.20

6.21

6.22

6.23

Recommend that a Swept Path Analysis is undertaken to ensure that
emergency vehicles can access the site.

Natural England: No Objection

TWC Education: Comment:

Requested a Financial Contribution of £2,197,081 towards Primary and
Secondary School provision.

National Highways: HOLDING RESPONSE:

Additional information has been requested.

Severn Trent Water (STW):

In February 2025, advised that STW are currently looking to carry out a
modelling exercise to understand the impact of all the current applications
within this catchment and therefore submitted a Holding Request;

Note that a pair of additional chasing e-mail's have been submitted
requesting further information for which no response has been received,
however note the suggested Condition imposed as part of the initial
consultation response in respect of:

Development not commencing until drainage plans for the disposal of foul
and surface water flows have been submitted to and approved by the
Local Planning Authority.

Active Travel England: Comment:

Refer to the LPA Standing Advice.

Shropshire Council Archaeology: Comment, subject to Condition in respect

of:

Phased programme of archaeological work.

Environmental Health:

Noise: Comment, subject to Condition in respect of:

Requirement for a NA is provided with any future application which must
provide details of how all properties will meet good internal noise levels as
found in BS8233: 2014 and 50dB LAeq 16hr in external areas providing
clear details of any mitigation measures.

Contaminated Land: Comment, subject to Condition in respect of:

Requiring a further Investigation and Risk Assessment.

Page 23



7.0

7.1

SUMMARY OF PUBLIC RESPONSE

A consultation exercise has been undertaken upon the registration of this
application. In response to this a total of 201 letters of objection, 4 letters of
support have been received.

It is noted that these totals include instances whereby (i) more than one
comment has been received from the same property (under different names);
(i) where duplicate comments have been submitted from the same person;
and (iii) where comments have been received from residents who live in
different areas of the borough (such as St Georges and Wellington).

All responses received are available to view in full on the planning file,
however the salient points raised have been summarised as follows:

Support:

- Lawley is a lovely area to live and needs more houses, albeit the
Infrastructure needs improvement.

Objection:

Principle of Development

- Proposed development is insular in nature and fails to take account of
neighbouring development sites and the opportunities for a comprehensive
approach to the master-planning of Lawley;

- Consider that the LPA has a duty to consider access at the Outline Stage;

- No requirement for anymore houses in this area — existing houses are not
selling.

Design

- Concern that some of the basic requirements have not been met in terms
of design criteria, designs of roads and streets, green network, trees,
hedgerows and woodlands, biodiversity and geodiversity;

- Consider that it would be more appropriate to provide a higher density
across other parts of the development land rather than spoiling and
destroying much of the ecological value that has established over many
years;

- Note observations regarding the proposed layout and design/layout issues
therein.

Existing Facilities

- Local facilities are already over-crowded - community services have
already failed to keep up with the additional housing;

- Inadequate education facilities meaning children need to travel for 1-hour
to access the nearest facility;

Page 24



- Local hospital is the fourth worst rated A&E facility in England —
exacerbated as a result of the development;

- No detailed evidence that the local schools and doctors’ surgeries have
adequate sufficient capacity.

Highway Matters

- Insufficient information has been provided to properly assess the
development’s impact and its deliverability;

- Access and highways impact - the application has been submitted in
Outline with All Matters Reserved - unusual given the importance of
access in demonstrating a site’s deliverability. Insufficient information to
allow LPA to make an informed decision. Transport Assessment states
that main site access will be taken from Lawley Drive/Pepper Mill,
assumed to be routed through Lawley Village, past Lawley Primary School
- a narrow and relatively quiet residential street with parking on both sides.

- Arleston Lane (i) is not wide enough for two-way traffic, (i) does not have
a footpath and is therefore unsafe for pedestrians, and (iii) it has not been
demonstrated that a suitable access can be delivered onto Arleston Lane
with adequate visibility and without unacceptable losses of trees and
vegetation;

- Council's Highways Design Guide (2019) requires two points of access for
schemes over 100 unit - deferring the approval of access to the Reserved
Matters Stage is unacceptable;

- Existing significant traffic congestion within the locality — likely to be
exacerbated;

- Traffic congestion around secondary schools as parents travel by car as a
result of limited education provision;

- Proposed development does not adequately address the needs of
pedestrians and cyclists;

- Area around the development lacks sufficient pedestrian infrastructure,
such as footpaths and safe crossing points;

- No dedicated cycling lanes, discouraging sustainable transport options
and increasing the likelihood of accidents involving cyclists;

- Inadequate bus provision;

- Relocation of the bus stop along Glendale directly in front of the proposed
parking and backing on to the back of the school will create a further pinch
point for traffic;

- Feel the flow of traffic leading onto the M54 from the Lawley Bypass will
greatly affect the existing Lawley residents during busy times of the day;

- Existing Public Right of Way (PRoW) has existed for long period of time
tens of years, yet Trees are being cut down to facilitate new PRoW;

- Preferable that no linkage is provided to the new development and none of
the proposed development is served from Arleston Lane - this section of
Arleston Lane is perhaps considered to be the most rural part where there
are no footways, no street lighting, practically no verges and with high
density hedges either side of the road;

- Plan does not provide facility for bus servicing;

Page 25



- No consideration has been given to how connectivity would be made to
the local employment sources and this would be critical in assessing the
need to improve existing public services;

- Impact of this development must be considered in the context of other
recent and planned developments in the area - the cumulative effect of
multiple projects exacerbates the strain on infrastructure, traffic and
congestion.

Geotechnical Matters/Drainage

- Underground Mining Constraints — consider a lack of understanding of
underground constraints and puts into question the ability to deliver the
scheme as proposed - Ground Conditions Report states ‘the construction
of buildings in the Red Zone areas is extremely problematic and not
recommended due to Deep Made Ground with the risk of inundation
settlement [and] past underground mine workings below the base of the
opencast which will require stabilisation below the opencast backfill of up

to 40 metre depth’ — note that issues may well be overcome with
engineering solutions, however these could impact on the scheme’s
viability;

- Further information is required to understand the detailed site access
proposals; underground mine workings and how these inform the
development parcels;

- Houses on Glendale have been here in excess of 20-years plus still
experience ground movement and very poor drainage;

- Drainage is appalling in the ‘higher up’ Glendale properties and will be
much worse in the proposed dwellings on a slope;

- Two mine shafts exist within the area;

- Land identified to the east of Arleston Lane and to the south of Apley
House is shown to have a mine shaft, a large area with excessive
gradient, which was deemed too steep for development - now appears to
contain an attenuation pond which would only collect what falls from the
sky and no run-off or collected water.

Ecology Matters/Open Space

- Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (PEA) submitted with the application,
dated 2020, exceeds the standard 24-month period, and cannot be relied
upon (whilst a more up-to-date EclA has been provided, it does not include
surveys for roosting Bats or Hazel Dormouse — consider that these
surveys must be undertaken at the Outline Stage and not deferred until
later;

- Otter habitat will be damaged,;

- Deer frequent this field along with Foxes and Badgers on a regular basis;

- Wildlife in Lawley has so many disruptions over the last 20-years - the site
being one of the few spaces they have left and yet now even more natural
space is wanting to be stripped away;

Page 26



8.0

8.1

- Lots of people moved to Lawley for the natural space surrounding it that is
being stripped away;

- Loss of Trees;

- Development would result in the loss of valuable green areas, which
currently provide essential benefits to the community;

- Destruction of green spaces harms biodiversity and removes important
habitats for wildlife;

- Green spaces play a crucial role in promoting mental and physical health,
offering residents areas for recreation and relaxation — the loss of these
spaces would negatively affect the quality of life in the area.

Other Matters

- No provision for solar panels or heat pumps;

- Noise, disturbance, or hazardous materials from construction of dwellings;

- Requirement to ensure that 25% Affordable Housing is not reduced;

- Houses along Glendale are getting affected by subsidence and walls
cracking;

- Local area is a hot spot for high crime place - crime rate is already much
higher;

- Lack of Youth & Community Facilities - instances of well documented
antisocial behaviour around the village green and at Glendale Park;

- The proposal of the large number of 2-bed properties is not in keeping with
the area;

- Pollution of Ketley Brook is inevitable with the proposed development
along with noise;

- Character and appearance of the estate should be in keeping with the
housing mix and of properties around the school;

- Impact upon existing views of open countryside;

- The introduction of houses directly onto Pepper Mill causes a privacy
issue;

- Vital that s.106 Contributions are provided to provide required
infrastructure;

- Itis not clear whether there are any additional commercial properties to be
provided to serve this residential development.

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS

Having regard to the Development Plan Policy and other material
considerations including comments received during the consultation process,
the planning application raises the following main issues:

- Principle of Development

- Indicative Site Layout and Density
- Impact upon Residential Amenity
- Highway Impacts

- Site Drainage

- Land Stability and Contamination
- Impact upon Ecology

- Planning Obligations

Page 27



8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

8.9

- Other Matters

Principle of Development

Section 38(6) of the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that
planning applications must be determined in accordance with the adopted
Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The
Development Plan comprises the Telford & Wrekin Local Plan (TWLP) which
was adopted in January 2018. The Council are currently at the Regulation 19
Stage of the Local Plan Review and therefore, limited weight will be given to
the relevant policies within this document. The National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.

The application site is allocated for residential development (up to 250no.
dwellings) under the adopted Local Plan (2018) and is known as Site H13.

Therefore, it is considered that the principle of development on this site can
be supported in principle, subject to all technical constraints and all other
material considerations being adequately addressed.

Indicative Site Layout and Density

Policy BE1 of the TWLP outlines that developments should respect and
respond positively to its context and should enhance the quality of the local
built and natural environment.

The design and layout of the site is not for formal consideration at this stage,
as this is an Outline Planning Application and not a Full Planning Application.
If this Outline application was to be approved, a detailed layout and the
appearance of the proposed dwellings would be considered at a later stage
under a separate Reserved Matters Planning Application.

An lllustrative Masterplan has been submitted to demonstrate how the site
could be laid out to accommodate up to 250no. dwellings and meet the
policies of the Local Plan. This lllustrative Masterplan does not contain details
such as bedroom numbers but can be used to assess whether acceptable
garden sizes and distances between principal windows could be achieved.

Based on the lllustrative Masterplan, separation distances between the
existing houses surrounding the site and the proposed dwellings suggest that
these may be sufficient to maintain privacy levels and facilitate an acceptable
level of screening and/or landscaping. However, it is once again noted that
this matter would be reviewed in depth at the Reserved Matters stage.

Noting the comments of the Council’'s Geotechnical Officer and whilst it is
considered that the development is feasible in principle - it is considered that
significant earthworks will likely need to be required in order to achieve the
requisite topography for the site in order to achieve the required gradients for
roads, alongside retaining features. The extent of works proposed has not
been fully explored at this stage (noting the Outline form of the application)

Page 28



8.10

8.11

8.12

8.13

8.14

8.15

and it is not therefore possible to fully determine the extent to which the
topography of the site may change at the later Reserved Matters Stage. It is
noted that should retaining features be required, this may significantly impact
upon the separation distances required, and in turn may affect the final
number of units which could be achieved on the site. For this reason, on the
basis of the omission of additional Geotech Reports, as requested as part of
any Reserved Matters Application, the planning application is proposed to be
Conditioned as a maximum of 250 units - noting that whilst 250 units could, in
principle, be achieved, this would be informed as a result of the extent of
works, informed by the additional Reports, being undertaken.

Where plots cannot achieve an acceptable separation distance, they may
need to come forward as bungalows rather than two-storey dwellings.
However, this would be a detailed matter for future consideration, subject to
the Outline Planning Application being Granted.

In light of the above assessments, it is considered that the proposal is
acceptable in respect of site layout, scale and designs, in accordance with
Local Plan Policy BEL1.

Impact on Residential Amenity

Policy BE1 of the Telford & Wrekin Local Plan outlines that the Council will
support development which demonstrates that there is no significant adverse
impact on nearby properties by way of noise, odour or light pollution or that
new development does not prejudice or undermine existing surrounding units.

Based on the lllustrative Masterplan, adequate separation distances between
the existing houses on Glendale and Pepper Mill surrounding the site and the
proposed dwellings are capable of being achieved, in order to maintain
privacy levels. There are a number of new plots which may not achieve a 21
metre separation distance between facing principal windows or as a result of
any potential retaining features, and, were the application to be approved and
come forward at Reserved Matters stage, this would need to be given further
consideration (noting that some plots may have to come forward as
bungalows).

With regard to noise, a Noise Assessment has been submitted with this
application. It should be noted that as this is an Outline Planning Application
with all matters reserved, specific comments on impacts on properties cannot
be provided at this time as any layout would be subject of a future Reserved
Matters application.

The submitted Noise Assessment (NA), dated 16 December 2024, has been
reviewed and it is noted that external amenity areas for dwellings should be
promoted to achieve 50dB LAeq 16 hr given the size of the site and the ability
therefore to promote a design and layout which enables this noise level to be
achieved across all dwellings.

Page 29



8.16

8.17

8.18

8.19

8.20

8.21

8.22

8.23

The NA finds that noise levels fluctuate across the site with noise levels
reaching 65dB LAeq 16hr at the site boundary with Lawley Drive and 59dB
LAeq 16hr at the boundary with Arleston Lane. Noise levels toward the West
of the site are generally lowest due to distance from noise sources in the area
- this information should inform the detailed design to promote dwellings in
quieter areas of the site to ensure the best possible noise amenity for future
site users. Utilising areas of the site with lowest noise levels should form part
of the good acoustic design process. Should dwellings be proposed in areas
noted to be noaisier it is expected that this will require mitigation to meet noise
levels meeting the standards previously promoted for external areas. These
mitigation measures would need to be submitted as part of a Reserved
Matters application.

It is noted that the Arleston Lane noise levels will likely be reduced due to
rerouting and traffic calming measures - the impact of such measures must be
predicted at the Reserved Matters stage to ensure that this is taken into
account.

The NA finds that it is expected that passive background ventilation will
enable internal noise levels to be met in most cases across the site (subject to
good acoustic design, layout and orientation of dwellings). In some areas it is
anticipated that there may need to be reliance on glazing performance and
trickle vents to meet internal noise levels. Good acoustic design should
reduce this need as far as possible to provide best possible noise
environments for future site users. The NA concludes that it should be
possible for most properties to achieve good internal noise levels with passive
ventilation methods and recommends that external areas should be able to
meet 50dB LAeq 16hr for the majority of residential properties.

Having considered the information provided it is considered possible for the
site to achieve good noise levels in internal and external areas. The NA has
provided many specific aspects to be taken into consideration when designing
the site to ensure good acoustic design.

It is recommended that a Condition is included on any approval to state that
an updated NA is provided with any future application which must provide
details of how all properties will meet good internal noise levels as found in
BS8233: 2014 and strive to achieve 50dB LAeq 16hr in external areas
providing clear details of any mitigation measures.

Noise, disturbance, or hazardous materials from the construction of dwellings
and other matters such as hours of site operation; are all proposed to be
considered as part of a Site Environmental Management Plan.

In light of the above assessment, Officers consider that the proposal would
not have a significantly detrimental impact upon the amenity of neighbouring
residential properties and is compliant with Policy BE1 of the Telford & Wrekin
Local Plan.

Highway Impacts

Page 30



8.24

8.25

8.26

8.27

8.28

8.29

The application has been submitted in Outline with all matters reserved,
meaning that access is not currently presented for approval. While this is a
valid approach within Planning and Legal parameters, it requires the Local
Highway Authority (LHA) to consider potential access scenarios and form
conclusions based on those assumptions

The site only has an application boundary which extends to extant roadways
at four points. These being:

1. Pepper Mill to the south;

2. Glendale to the south;

3. Yew Tree Moor to the south;
4. Arleston Lane to the north.

In-line with the submitted indicative proposals, the LHA is currently working on
the basis that the site will be accessed from these four aforementioned
locations.

It is important to note that the current site boundary does not facilitate a
practical connection to the existing signalised junction on the A5223 Lawley
Drive, which also serves Birchfield Way. Such a connection would rely on land
outside the scope of the present application. As a result, a direct access
arrangement onto the A5223 is not under consideration at this stage. In the
absence of such a proposal, the Local Highway Authority (LHA) has assessed
the application based on the access arrangements currently put forward

The site is allocated as H13 in the current Local Plan and is allocated for 250
units. As such the LHA must be aware that the site has substantial planning
merit, in that it is formally allocated, has been subject to previous pubic
consultation and engagement and also has been through a planning
inspectorate examination. The development is not speculative and neither
does its proposed yield exceed that outlined in the Local Plan Table 21 -
Housing Site Allocations.

In highway terms this does not mean the LHA's position is predetermined but
it does mean that the highways conclusions drawn must be mindful of the
policy context already set through the due planning process.

The LHA’s observations of the Local Highway Network to this site are
generally consistent with those made by Objectors to the application through
the consultation process. These can be summarised as:

- Congestion on Pepper Mill, Glendale and around Church Croft and Yew
Tree Moor at Lawley School pick up and drop off periods. This is
compounded further by indiscriminate parking, antisocial driving behaviour
and a general lack of discipline in the use of defined crossing points;

- A perceived increase use of Arleston Lane in order to access Wellington.
Arleston Lane is a rural lane in nature with a national speed limit and no
imposed vehicular restrictions to its legal use. It does narrow in locations

Page 31



where low speed passing with restricted manoeuvrability and some
backing up does occur. Arleston Lane also has no dedicated pedestrian
segregation;

Perceived queuing issues on the Pepper Mill arm of the Lawley
Crossroads signal junction. At peak times the Pepper Mill arm doesn’t
always clear under one signal cycle resulting in some queue build up;
Potential construction traffic issues due to the proximity of the School.

8.30 The LHA does believe that the issues identified have the potential to be
mitigated to a degree proportionate to the developments proposed highway
impact. Such mitigation is also likely to provide betterment to the existing
highway situation and problems in the area — especially at school peak times.

8.31

The information presented in the Applicant’s submission has been reviewed,
alongside the submitted Transport Assessment addendums containing
updated data. The following has been deduced:

1.

The layout proposed is entirely indicative and therefore highways
commentary on design and layout specifics will be made on the later
submitted Reserved Matter application;

Notwithstanding the above, Arleston Lane is proposed to be diverted in
full through the new internal spine for the development, resulting in a
part closure, to vehicular traffic, of the extant route. It is claimed such
an arrangement will deter the existing rat running of Arleston Lane,
which currently occurs in order to avoid the A5223 and B5061 corridor
through to Wellington. This claim does have merit as data suggests
that there can be a 2-minute benefit to the Arleston Lane route at peak
network times. Therefore it is essential that the new development spine
road is highly traffic calmed to a design speed of 20mph or below and
is presented in a form that does not encourage through traffic. The
specific detail of this can be addressed at the Reserved Matters stage;

250 residential units is expected to generate 162 AM peak hour two
way trips and 168 PM peak hour two way trips. The trip rates used to
derive these have been taken from the Telford Strategic Transport
Model and they have also been validated by the LHA against trip rate
data collected for Lawley Phase 6. The later being slightly lower than
that used in the application submission however for a robust analysis
the LHA will consider the respective 162 and 168 as appropriate. The
LHA can therefore broadly assume from this that the site will generate
on average 2.75 new cars onto the network per minute across a peak
hour;

The distribution of the traffic generated by the development, has been
defined by the Telford Strategic Transport Model. This concludes that
of the 162 new two way trips at an AM peak, 118 of these will route
through Pepper Mill and Glendale to the south and 44 will route
through Arleston Lane to the north. At a PM peak 127 of the 168 new
two way trips will route through Pepper Mill and Glendale and the

Page 32



remaining 41 through Arleston Lane. Some traffic will access Dawley
Road via Glendale and The Meadows but the modelling suggests this
will be minimal;

A pocket of circa. 10 units are indicated to be accessed through Yew
Tree Moor and will sit opposite No.44-48 Pepper Mill. This is a small
number of houses, so traffic generations will be low but the delivery of
new housing frontages along here will sterilize some existing parking
provision for those houses opposite. The proposed development layout
is purely indicative currently, therefore the LHA can make no particular
objection to the arrangement but any further detailed applications will
need to make an allowance for any on street parking loss in this area
and it will require careful design consideration;

The Applicant’s observations have suggested an existing two way
traffic flow on Arleston Lane of 116 vehicles in the AM peak and 94 in
the PM peak. These claims have been cross checked against the
Councils own observations for validity and the LHA finds no reason to
dismiss the data presented. The applicant has undertaken an exercise
of offsetting the new development flows against those which are
currently on Arleston Lane, to help demonstrate a net reduction in
overall flow at peaks, as a result of the developments proposals to
divert Arleston Lane into the development layout and therefore mitigate
its use as a rat run between Lawley and Wellington. The LHA believe
these claims do have some weight but whether the reality would be as
black and white as the figures present, of a net reduction of 72 trips at
an AM peak and 53 at a PM peak, it would be almost impossible to
conclude. Driver behaviour, decision making based on personal
circumstances and changing day to day traffic conditions determining
route choice, are not consistent. However, the LHA does consider that
it is fair to assume that close to an equilibrium could be achieved
between the new development flows on Arleston Lane and a proportion
of the existing rat running traffic being reassigned onto the A5223. It is
also believed the proposals will critically reduce rat running movements
at periods outside of peak times, contributing to some overall
betterment in the area and alleviate some historic concerns.

The Applicant’s observations have suggested an existing two way
traffic flow on Arleston Lane of 116 vehicles in the AM peak and 94 in
the PM peak. These claims have been cross checked against the
Councils own observations for validity and the LHA finds no reason to
dismiss the data presented. The Applicant has undertaken an exercise
of offsetting the new development flows against those which are
currently on Arleston Lane, to help demonstrate a net reduction in
overall flow at peaks, as a result of the developments proposals to
divert Arleston Lane into the development layout and therefore mitigate
its use as a rat run between Lawley and Wellington.

It is considered that these claims do have some weight, however
whether the reality would be as black and white as the figures present,

Page 33



of a net reduction of 72 trips at an AM peak and 53 at a PM peak, it
would be almost impossible to conclude. Driver behaviour, decision
making based on personal circumstances and changing day to day
traffic conditions determining route choice, are not consistent.
However, it is believed that it is fair to assume that close to an
equilibrium could be achieved between the new development flows on
Arleston Lane and a proportion of the existing rat running traffic being
reassigned onto the A5223. Furthermore, the proposals will critically
reduce rat running movements at periods outside of peak times,
contributing to some overall betterment in the area and alleviate some
historic concerns.

A comprehensive accident analysis has been carried out for the
highway network around the site for the last six years. The cordon for
this includes Arleston Lane up to Arleston Manor Mews, the full length
of Pepper Mill and Glendale up to Dawley Road. The accident numbers
are very low. There have been two slights on Pepper Mill, both
occurred at night, where one vehicle struck a kerb and the other where
a taxi pulling out struck a stationary pedestrian in the road. There has
been one serious on Arleston Lane which was a snow related collision
and another serious on Glendale which was attributed to a car pulling
out around a parked car and into the path of another, just before 6pm.
None of the recorded accidents therefore appear to be related to the
school drop off and pick up periods;

Non-motorised vehicle surveys on Arleston Lane have demonstrated
that pedestrian movements are exceptionally low here with on average
between one and two movements in a peak hour. These claims are
consistent with the LHA’s own observations and knowledge of the area.
Pedestrian desire lines do not really lend towards this route, as
facilities to and from Wellington are better suited to that on Dawley
Road. The development will be required to contribute towards the
upgrade of the Wrekin Way, that runs through the middle of the site,
out onto Dawley Road to the west to help maximise this sustainable
pedestrian connection;

In overall sustainability terms the site is very good, as it forms a natural
extension to the wider Lawley development. Bus service 8 and 8A are
easily accessible from Glendale and 99A and 99C are available on
Dawley Road. There is excellent non-motorised connectivity into the
wider Lawley area, with the district centre being just over 1km away.
Lawley Primary School is on the sites doorstep and Lawley Academy is
around the same distance away as the district centre. The Wrekin Way
also provides direct sustainable linkages through the east of Lawley
village and through to Lawley Phase 5 & 9, Spring Terrace, The Rock
and onto Bellpit Road which then links through to Colliers Way
providing access to Thomas Telford School, the Bridge/Forge Retail
Parks and then onto the Town Centre;

Page 34



10.

11.

12.

Traffic conditions around Pepper Mill and Glendale at school drop off
and pick up periods can be difficult. The applicant acknowledges this
and this point has been pressed on them by the LHA through all pre
application discussions. Some sections of road in the area at the
school times can effectively become one way with traffic struggling to
move through in a free flowing manner. The road space around the
school effectively serves as a school car park where issues are
compounded by indiscriminate driver and pedestrian behaviour at
times.

The Applicant has been keen to look to mitigate some of these issues
through the evolution of their proposals. It has been acknowledged that
if 118 new peak hours trips are to be generated onto the Pepper Mill
and Glendale road space at an AM peak then development proposals
need to proportionately alleviate existing issues and concerns.
Accordingly, the applicant is proposing a new public car park within
their site, adjacent to Glendale, which can be utilised by the school to
provide an off road facility for vehicles on the pick-up and drop off
periods. The masterplan currently indicates a 40 space car park, which
will undoubtedly make a material mitigating impact on existing issues, if
coupled with appropriate measures to then better manage traffic on
Pepper Mill, Church Croft and Yew Tree Moor. The later being
essential, as there is a strong likelihood traffic displaced from Pepper
Mill and Glendale, as a result of the new car park, will be backfilled by
new opportunistic parking in that road space. A better utilisation of the
one way road between Pepper Mill and the School, coupled with robust
traffic and non-resident parking prohibitions and enforcement in the
area are a must.

Comprehensive modelling has taken place of the Lawley Crossroads
Signal junction. The modelling has been conducted under an optimised
analysis rather than using the current controller program. The LHA has
no issue with this approach, as the controller currently does not run at
maximum efficiency. The full network of Lawley signals will be
upgraded to an intelligence linked traffic management control system;
this is an ongoing project where money from the wider Lawley SUE has
already been secured for its implementation. The LHA acknowledge
procurement is in progress for the installation of the fibre required to
link the signals together. Accordingly, the LHA has no concerns for the
additional traffic generation from this development onto the signal
controlled network. Matters relating to the M54 junction 6 are within the
remit of National Highways, who directly provide specific consultation
comments to the LPA.

There has been some concerns expressed regarding construction
traffic associated with the development and the close proximity to the
school. The application at this time is for all matters reserved, so it is
reasonable to expect that this will be addressed under the submission

Page 35



8.32

8.33

8.34

8.35

8.36

8.37

of further information by means of a Construction and Environmental
Management Plan. The LHA will seek that this ensures no construction
traffic, associated with the site, is permitted within the school drop off
and pick up periods and also does not utilise Arleston Lane. There will
also be a requirement for highway precondition and post conditions
surveys, where the developer will be fully responsible for any damages
or maintenance matters occurring.

National Highways have been consulted on the proposal and have submitted
a 3-month Holding Response in order to allow the Applicant the opportunity to
submit additional information. A formal response has been received to the
comments raised and this is currently pending consideration by National
Highways. Any response received will be updated to Members accordingly.

In light of the above comments received by the Local Highways Authority,
alongside proposed Condition(s) and Financial Contribution(s), Highways
England and Active Travel England, and subject to the Holding Response by
National Highways being removed, the proposal is deemed to be compliant
with Policies C3 and C5 of the Telford & Wrekin Local Plan and is considered
to be acceptable from a technical highways perspective.

Site Drainage

Within the FRA and drainage strategy it was identified that a private rising
main likely crosses this site. Within the detailed drainage design to be
submitted at the Reserved Matters stage/within future Discharge of Conditions
applications, this asset should be picked up as it will either need to be
diverted through the development, or outfall into the sites’ foul system (and
therefore impact the design of the new foul pumping station). In respect of the
new storm water outfall to be lain into the culvert crossing under Arleston
Lane, it is highlighted that the connection point should be investigated via
CCTV to prove this is a viable connection point and confirm whether any
upgrades may be necessary. Permission and a method statement for the
connection to the Highways culvert must be agreed by the LHA separately to
any planning permission.

It is considered that the drainage scheme shown on the submitted plans and
documents are acceptable in principle from a technical perspective and
demonstrate that the site can be adequately drained. As such, the proposal is
therefore deemed to be compliant with policies ER11 and ER12 of the Telford
& Wrekin Local Plan 2011-2031.

Land Stability and Contamination

Land Stability

The Council’s Geotechnical Officer considers that the development is feasible
in principle — noting that it is considered that significant earthworks will likely
need to be required in order to achieve the requisite topography for the site in
order to achieve the required gradients for roads, alongside retaining features.

Page 36



8.38

8.39

8.40

8.41

8.42

8.43

8.44

The extent of works that would be required has not been fully explored at this
stage (noting the Outline form of the application) and it is not therefore
possible to fully determine the extent to which the topography of the site may
change at the later Reserved Matters Stage, noting that retaining features
may be required. For this reason, on the basis of the omission of additional
Geotech Reports, as requested as part of any Reserved Matters Application,
the planning application is proposed to be Conditioned as a maximum of 250
units - noting that whilst 250 units could, in principle, be achieved, this would
be informed as a result of the extent of works, informed by the additional
reports, being undertaken.

The Council’'s Geotechnical Officer has requested that Condition(s) be
attached to any Grant of Outline Planning Consent requiring (i) Full
Settlement Calculations based on the final design layout and levels; (ii) Mining
constraints mitigation proposals based on the final design layout and levels;
(i) A ground gas mitigation design; (iv) If any retaining structures are to be
built, a full set of calculations (as part of any Reserved Matters application).
Officers consider these conditions to be reasonable.

The Contamination Assessment Report (CAR) contains a preliminary Coal
Mine Gas Risk Assessment, and provisional intrusive investigation which
includes soil, gas and groundwater sampling.

The Contamination Assessment has identified ‘high’ potential risks to human
health from ground gas, likely originating from the shallow mine workings and
opencast mining backfill. The CAR states that ‘further ground gas data
collection is recommended.’

The ‘Contamination Assessment’ provides a number of Recommendations
noting that ‘further site investigation is required to inform detailed design and
reduce risk uncertainty in the Risk Assessment that has been completed to
date.’

The Local Planning Authority agree with the ‘Contamination Assessment’
conclusions and recommendations, requiring further investigation and Risk
Assessment by means of Condition.

Impact upon Ecology

Mandatory Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG) applies to this development and it will
be expected to achieve a 10% net gain in biodiversity units across all habitat

types.

The site has a baseline value of 48.26 area habitat units, 8.50 hedgerow
habitat units and 0.30 watercourse units. There are no irreplaceable habitats
within the site, although there are three habitats of principle importance which
are lowland mixed deciduous woodland, wet woodland and native hedgerows.
These habitats are recognised as having the highest possible strategic
significance within the metric, giving additional weight to their contribution to

Page 37



8.45

8.46

8.47

8.48

8.49

8.50

the overall unit score - these habitats are all proposed to be retained within
the current indicative proposal.

The baseline assessment of the site identifies 10 area habitat types including
two habitats of principle importance, four hedgerow habitat types including
one habitat of principle importance, and one watercourse habitat on the site.
Condition assessments for all habitats on the site match the evidence
provided in terms of photographs, as well as local knowledge of the site.

As this is an Outline Planning Application, it is likely that the Indicative Site
Layout will change, and therefore limited weight can be placed on the ‘post-
development’ score provided in the metric. However, the exercise carried out
demonstrates that the site in its current iteration would be capable of
comfortably achieving more than the 10% mandatory gain target; the provided
metric demonstrates a 26.67% (12.87 unit) gain in area habitats, a 36.98%
(3.14 units) gain in hedgerow habitats, and an 11.62% (0.03 unit) gain in
watercourse habitats. It would therefore be expected that the final layout of
this would also achieve more than 10% gain.

The Ecological Impact Assessment (EclA) has identified potential impacts
relating to Bats in trees and Dormouse, as well as pre-commencement
inspection requirements for a range of species. Furthermore, the ECclIA
recognised a potential impact pathway to The Wrekin & The Ercall SSSI, a
statutorily protected site located approximately 2km from the proposed
development. Due to lack of hydrological connectivity between the sites, there
is not likely to have any significant impact on the SSSI site.

The EclA identified six non-statutory sites for nature conservation within 2km
of the development site - the closest of these is the Whitchurch Drive Local
Wildlife Site, approximately 0.6km from the site. There are no recognised or
identified impact pathways between the development site and any of the six
protected sites, and so no adverse impacts are anticipated as a result of this
development. As such, no further consideration is given to non-statutory
protected sites for this proposed development.

The ECcIA identifies that a further survey is required as to the potential impacts
of this development on roosting bats. Since initial surveys were undertaken,
the layout of the site has changed and it is now expected that an area of
woodland habitat is likely to be lost. As this change occurred past the end of
the most recent bat survey season, it has not been possible to provide an
updated bat survey considering the impact of the loss of trees and potential
roosting features. As such, Ground Level Tree Assessments will be required
in advance of any Reserved Matters Application. Furthermore, the EclA
highlights the loss of approximately 0.1ha of woodland habitat on the site — a
further survey for Hazel Dormouse within this affected parcel of woodland is
recommended in advance of any Reserved Matters Application.

Of the 11 ponds within 500 metres of the site boundary, none returned a

positive or inconclusive eDNA result which could indicate presence of
breeding GCN within those waterbodies. Furthermore, no reptiles were

Page 38



8.51

8.52

8.53

8.54

8.55

recorded throughout the suite of surveys, and it is anticipated that any impact
to reptiles due to development of this site will be to a local site level.

The habitats on-site are suitable for foraging by badgers and other mammals
such as hedgehog. Impacts on badgers and other small mammals were
scoped out within the EclA as no evidence of setts or other shelter locations
were identified. However, as these species are often transient and can
establish locations within short timescales, it will be a requirement for any
Reserved Matters Application that a pre-commencement survey be carried
out to update this.

Natural England have returned a ‘No Objection’ response to the planning
application, stating that ‘based on the plans submitted, Natural England
considers that the proposed development will not have significant adverse
impacts on statutorily protected nature conservation sites.” As such, no further
consideration is given to statutory protected sites for this proposed
development.

In light of the above assessments and their being no technical objections
towards the proposal in this regard, it is considered that the scheme is
compliant with Policies NE1 and NE2 of the Telford & Wrekin Local Plan.

Planning Obligations

Any planning consent would be Conditional on a s.106 Agreement to secure
the following (plus indexation):

I. £650.00 per dwelling towards enhancements and upgrades to local
sport and recreational spaces (with the final amount payable confirmed
at the reserved matters stage, where the final number of dwellings will
be confirmed);

. £294.00 per bed space towards Development of Primary Care
Infrastructure (with the final amount payable confirmed at the reserved
matters stage, where the final number of dwellings and their break-
down will be confirmed);

iii. £2,197,081 towards Primary and Secondary School Provision;

iv. £35,000 towards the upgrade of the Wrekin Way from Dawley Road to
the development area;

V. £250,000 towards the remodelling and an increase in effectiveness of
the existing one way road between Pepper Mill and Lawley Primary
School;

Vi. £5,000 towards Travel Plan Monitoring for 5-years.

The Agent has confirmed that the site will deliver 25% Affordable Housing as
required by Local Plan Policy HO5 — with no less than 25% of that provision
as First Homes and the remaining 75% of that provision to be Social or
Affordable Rented.

Any Reserved Matters Application shall be required to include details in
respect of:

Page 39



8.56

8.57

8.58

8.59

8.60

8.61

- an appropriate mix of affordable dwelling types and sizes will need to be
agreed. This shall consist of a mix of one, two and three bedroom
properties, including bungalows to be agreed,

- be fully integrated within the development as a whole and provided in
clusters of no more than four to six dwellings;

- 45% of all Affordable Housing shall achieve the higher accessibility
standard M4(2) Category 2 (accessible and adaptable) and 5% should
meet M4(3) Category 3a (wheelchair adaptable).

In determining the required planning obligations on this specific application
the following three tests as set out in the CIL Regulations (2010), in particular
Regulation 122, have been applied to ensure that the application is treated on
its own merits: a) necessary to make the development acceptable in planning
terms; b) directly related to the development; c) fairly and reasonably related
in scale and kind to the development.

Other Matters

In respect of the National Design Space Standards (NDSS), the initial pro-
forma noted that 10no. of the units would have a marginal shortfall. These
calculations are based upon an lllustrative Masterplan which would likely
significantly change as part of a Reserved Matters Planning Application. The
Applicant would need to demonstrate compliance with this standard during the
Reserved Matters stage, at which point, a final site layout will be proposed.

As a result of the Outline nature of the Planning Application, the Applicant is
not required to provide details in respect of sustainability credentials, namely
the installation of solar panels or heat pumps, noting that the installation of
solar panels is a requirement as part of Building Regulations.

Similarly, the nature and mix of house types are noted as lllustrative within the
submitted plans and these, alongside the design and character of the new
housing would come forward as part of a Reserved Matters Planning
Application.

Concern has been raised regarding the local area being a hot spot for high
crime and there allegedly being instances of well documented anti-social
behaviour around the Village Green and at Glendale Park. Whilst this is
noted, as the proposal is only Outline in nature, it is not possible to consider
the final layout of the site and therefore consider designing out crime. In a
similar vein, it cannot be assumed that the erection of further housing within
this area would exacerbate this issue or lead to an increase of crime. Such
considerations (in respect of designing out crime) would again form part of a
Reserved Matters Planning Application for which the layout would be
designed to incorporate natural surveillance, including features such as dual
frontages and overlooking of open spaces.

Clarification has been sought regarding the nature of the development
proposed and whether there are any additional commercial properties to be

Page 40



8.62

9.0

9.1

9.2

9.3

10.0

10.1

provided to serve this residential development. It should be noted that the
development is solely limited to a residential development, and whilst a
representation has been received from a neighbouring landowner, this does
not form part of the consideration of the current Planning Application.

Whilst it has been raised that houses along Glendale are alleged to have
been affected by subsidence and walls cracking, unfortunately this is not a
material planning consideration and cannot therefore be considered as part of
the current Planning Application.

CONCLUSION

This application is seeking Outline Planning Permission to develop this site for
residential purposes, upto 250n0. dwellings. The development is allocated for
residential under the adopted Local Plan (2018) known as Site H13.

With the exception of National Highways, Statutory Consultees either Support
or raise No Objection to the scheme and have requested Condition(s) and/or
Financial Contributions to mitigate the impact of the proposed development,
where those impacts cannot be accommodated on-site. These include
Financial Contributions towards improved education, play/recreation/sport
facilities, healthcare facilities, and highways/Public Rights of Way (PRoW).
Affordable Housing would be provided onsite secured at 25% of the overall
development. Subject to these Condition(s) and Financial Contributions being
agreed, Officers consider the proposals can achieve policy compliance.

Should this application be approved, details matters such as, access, layout,
scale, appearance and landscaping would come forward at a later date
through a separate Reserved Matters planning application(s). Many of the
matters of details raised by consultees would be addressed at that stage.

On balance, therefore, the proposal is deemed to be compliant with the
Telford & Wrekin Local Plan 2011-2031 and the guidance contained within the
NPPF.

RECOMMENDATION

Based on the conclusions above, it is recommended that the Committee
RESOLVE DELEGATED AUTHORITY to the Service Delivery Manager to
GRANT OUTLINE PLANNING PERMISSION subject to the removal of the
Holding Objection, from National Highways, and any requested mitigation
(with the authority to finalise any matter including Condition(s), Legal
Agreement Terms, or any later variations) subject to the following:

A) The Applicant/landowners entering into a Section 106 Agreement with
the Local Planning Authority (subject to indexation from the date of

Page 41



committee with terms to be agreed by the Development Management
Service Delivery Manager) relating to:

)] £650.00 per dwelling towards enhancements and upgrades to
local sport and recreational spaces (with the final amount
payable confirmed at the reserved matters stage, where the final
number of dwellings will be confirmed);

i) £294.00 per bed space towards Development of Primary Care
Infrastructure (with the final amount payable confirmed at the
reserved matters stage, where the final number of dwellings and
their break-down will be confirmed);

i) £2,197,081 Primary and Secondary School Provision;

iv) £35,000 towards the upgrade of the Wrekin Way from Dawley
Road to the development area;

V) £250,000 towards the remodelling and an increase in
effectiveness of the existing one way road between Pepper Mill
and Lawley Primary School;

Vi) £5,000 towards Travel Plan Monitoring for 5-years;

vii) 1% Monitoring Fee for Section 106 Contribution(s).

B) The following Condition(s) (with authority to finalise Condition(s) and
reasons for approval to be delegated to Development Management
Service Delivery Manager):

Condition(s):

Time Limit Outline

Time Limit Reserved Matters

Time Limit — Submission of Reserved Matters

Standard Outline — All Matters Reserved

Reserved Matters in accordance with Parameters Plan

No more than 250n0. dwellings to be permitted as part of Reserved Matters
General Details Required

Details of Materials

Habitat Monitoring and Management Plan

Ecological Survey - in accordance with the EclA

Erection of Artificial Nesting/Roosting Boxes

Pre-commencement inspection - Badgers

Ecological Mitigation Strategy and Method Statement

Landscaping Plan

Landscape Management Plan

Scheme for Foul and Surface Water Drainage

Reserved Matters Consent to include Car Park (minimum of 40 spaces for
unrestricted use associated with Lawley Primary School

Reserved Matters Consent to include Diversion of Arleston Lane onto the new
development spine road

Reserved Matters Consent to include provision of new parking to offset any
lost in vicinity of No’s. 44-50 Pepper Mill and No.1 Yew Tree Moor

Updated Travel Plan

Estate Street Phasing/Completion Plan

Page 42



Details for Future Management/Maintenance of Proposed Streets

Full Engineering Details of New Estate Streets

Full Details of Proposed Street Tree Locations

Private Roadway Construction

Site Environmental Management Plan (SEMP)

Noise Assessment to accompany any Reserved Matters Application
Geotechnical Documentation required to form part of a subsequent Reserved
Matters Application, incl. (i) Full settlement calculations based on the final
design layout and levels; (ii) Mining constraints mitigation proposals; (iii)A
ground gas mitigation design; (iv) If any retaining structures are to be built, a
full set of calculations

Development not commencing until drainage plans for the disposal of foul and
surface water flows have been submitted to and approved by the Local
Planning Authority

Further Intrusive Site Investigations

Phased Programme of Archaeological Work

Development in Accordance with Plans

Informative(s):

Section 106 Agreement

Coal Authority Low Risk Area
Nesting Wild Birds

Fire Authority

S184/S278 Agreement
Biodiversity Net Gain

Conditions

Reasons for Grant of Approval
Approval Following Amendments

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



100
|

Gy abed

I/ | DO NOT SCALE SAFETY, HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL
| 1N 120.4m i sun %) INFORMATION
“‘ In addition to the hazards/risks normally associated with the types of work
— detailed on this drawing, note the following:
_ CONSTRUCTION
\
\\ N/A
o | N MAINTENANCE/CLEANING
10} A\
*aES ] \ N/A
= DECOMMISSIONING/DEMOLITION
— N/A
] It is assumed that all works will be carried out by a competent contractor
152.1m working, where appropriate, to an approved method statement
-] KEY
o _ | Ploy ared —— Red Line Boundary
E — Telford and Wrekin Council and
© = Haloerwood Homes England Ownership
5
- — - \\\\
|
/ ‘: “
/) \ L e
/ // | II
( /
‘ //
\“ (’/ ll
/ L \
/ \\, R ’ -/
c// /
“‘ /
/
(
— ] 7 7/ ) \\\\\
//// ( \‘ \
|
g \\\ \\\ Balbncing Pond
\ ) ‘\\‘
\ ) Path
4N \“‘\ “ \
4 \ ‘ 1518m “ \ BQLQTCMQ Pond
\ \ The Paddock
Workings (dis) \ o\ A \ \ S
N\ \ O\ \ |
\\ / ‘\ \ D Bromley Hous \ \P\\s > ; X P \ /
\\\ | # \ A\ \ \ —X - ‘ —~ N\ = C \ ) 22\ \ /o
\ / | @ P \ N S\ \
= F - N\ NZEN NANIN 1)
\ ‘ \ Apley Hous : \. / o N v L B e N /
\ \ \\\\ \\\“\ ‘ ‘ //""'\\ \\\ “: ‘\\ “\\ = i/// ///// \ & 7,‘: o () ‘:} \ S “\/1\\,\3 ”;/\{JC?/ — - -~ \ \\\ \\
! ‘ \\ \\ . AN\ \ X /// /,/ < \\ = |
\ \ \ \ \ N
\ ( \\ \ N\ N
07 ‘ \\\ o |z \ IR AN ™
156.4m \ T L )\ P \
| \ [ : ‘\ |
\ \\ | ‘ - | |
\\‘ / \\ | “ “ =
\ \ ) | //
Lawley Furnoces - \ L |
- . v |
- N i D B
N )\ 35
T\
N~ N\ TN\~
N . '\L
\\\ ] \“ ‘ cc i
_ \ B x\ \ \— —
\ L ~ - \(\\ \\\ 2
g ~ o . N\
) . \ //,M\/ ) = \
\ | | | 1 — | ‘ m | —
|| | |1 — . L
N
\ | | 1 MIRIAM L AN
\ 10m Om  10m 30m 50m 70m 90m
Scale 1:1250
P05 13/01/25 Minor Amendments GC HA VD
B P04 16/12/24 Minor Amendments for Final Submission GC HA VD
@Q P03 13/12/24 Minor Amendments for Final Submission GC HA VD
N P02 31/05/24 Minor Amendments GC HA VD
P01 | 22/05/24 First Issue GC DB VD
Rev. Date Description By Chk'd | App'd
Drawing Status Suitability
\ Silver Birches o AN {
\ o\ CommuniTy\ \
\ O\ Centre X // /\/ J B = 5
A\ / INShealls
‘/‘ Two Chamberlain Square Tel: +44 (0)121 483 5757
‘ Birmingham Fax:
\ o\ g\gegfb\l\)ﬂldlands www.atkinsrealis.com
© AtkinsRéalis (2023)
\ o\ I . Client
\ E Telford & Wrekin
COUNCIL
\\\ \
\ \
\ Project Title
\ \
\
N LAWLEY WEST
\ \
\\ \
\\\ \\ Drawing Title
\\ \
\ o\ SITE LOCATION
o AND OWNERSHIP PLAN
Scale Designed Drawn Checked Authorised
1:1250 GC GC DB VD
Original Size Date Date Date Date
A0 22/05/24 22/05/24 22/05/24 22/05/24
Drawing Number Revision
5207798-ATK-ELS-XX-LL-DR-000001 P05



AutoCAD SHX Text
Six Acres

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
FW

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
DAWLEY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
161.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
Stable

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
GP

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
Well

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
Rozel

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
Arleston Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
161.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
159.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
Calderwood

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
152.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
9 to 10

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
19 to 20

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
13 to 14

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
1 to 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
Ketley Brook Caravan Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
3 to 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
11 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
15 to 16

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
17 to 18

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
7 to 8

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
5 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
FW

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
Silver Birches

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
Lawley Furnaces

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
157.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
Workings (dis)

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
Workings (dis)

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
120.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
Ketley Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
184

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
162

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
194

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
Ps

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
Ps

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
Mast

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
Community

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
115

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
YEW TREE MOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
PEPPER MILL

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
162.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
166.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
The Paddocks

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
Bromley House

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
Apley House

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
BEMROSE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
Balancing Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
Balancing Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
133

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
141

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
121

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
DOBBINS LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
SUNNY LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
NEWDALE HALT

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
SYNDERS WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
HIGGS ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
SYMON FOLD

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
COTTOM WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
123

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
143

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
151

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
Co Const Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
LAWLEY DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
156.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
BIRCHFIELD WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
Boro Const & Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
Balancing Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
BIRCHFIELD WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
PANTULF CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
THE FOXHOLES

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
BRAY LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
PLIMMERS LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
BARCLAY FOLD

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
122

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
Day Nursery

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
Lawley Village

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
REYNOLDS FOLD

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
GRICE LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
MIRIAM LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
106

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
LIGHT LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
STONEY FOLD

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
CHESHIRES WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
112

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
4a

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
WULFGEAT LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
TUROLD MEWS

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
107

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
HOBBINS LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
5a

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
A5223

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
WOODING DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
187

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
BEMROSE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
BOOTH CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
BOOTH CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
179

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
219

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
BRIGHT LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
124

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
SANDHOLE CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
WOODING DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
142

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
148

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
140

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
159

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_445
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_446
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_447
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_448
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_449
HOYLE LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_450
STRAWBERRY MOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text_451
PEARCE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_452
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_453
186

AutoCAD SHX Text_454
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_455
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_456
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_457
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_458
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_459
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_460
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_461
CHURM LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_462
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_463
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_464
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_465
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_466
BOOTH CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_467
136

AutoCAD SHX Text_468
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_469
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_470
WHITEHEAD GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_471
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_472
197

AutoCAD SHX Text_473
189

AutoCAD SHX Text_474
157

AutoCAD SHX Text_475
172

AutoCAD SHX Text_476
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_477
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_478
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_479
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_480
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_481
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_482
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_483
BIRCHFIELD WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_484
209

AutoCAD SHX Text_485
153

AutoCAD SHX Text_486
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_487
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_488
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_489
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_490
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_491
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_492
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_493
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_494
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_495
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_496
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_497
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_498
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_499
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_500
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_501
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_502
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_503
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_504
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_505
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_506
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_507
160

AutoCAD SHX Text_508
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_509
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_510
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_511
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_512
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_513
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_514
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_515
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_516
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_517
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_518
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_519
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_520
BICKERTON GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_521
LINNEL GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_522
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_523
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_524
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_525
LLOYD CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_526
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_527
BICKERTON GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_528
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_529
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_530
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_531
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_532
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_533
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_534
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_535
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_536
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_537
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_538
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_539
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_540
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_541
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_542
CLIPS MOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text_543
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_544
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_545
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_546
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_547
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_548
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_549
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_550
Lawley

AutoCAD SHX Text_551
Primary School

AutoCAD SHX Text_552
CHURCH CROFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_553
WELL CROFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_554
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_555
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_556
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_557
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_558
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_559
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_560
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_561
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_562
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_563
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_564
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_565
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_566
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_567
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_568
GLENDALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_569
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_570
SANDHOLE CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_571
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_572
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_573
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_574
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_575
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_576
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_577
Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_578
143.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_579
129.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_580
151.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_581
142.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_582
49


This page is intentionally left blank



100

Millimetres

10

Loentinnl

— v obed

e

Svyétglules/<

oy 22no.___DWl_=___LLIN_GS ]

PLOT

i no 'IIDWEITL'L'IN GS . ﬂﬁ =T

28no. DWEL

a | |

N po S

.' — _"____ f

LINGS

' pLOTM
; ; ke 5
s  25n0. DWELLING

k.

b -
s P.‘T-s"'
((Ftno. DWELLINGS .

SAFETY, HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL

INFORMATION

In addition to the hazards/risks normally associated with the types of work

detailed on this drawing, note the following:

LAND USE i
Total area of site 15.26 ha CONSTRUCTION
Existing Vegetation retained 2.40ha BlfA

(Woodland/Trees/Hedgerow)

MAINTENANCE/CLEANING

N/A

DECOMMISSIONING/DEMOLITION

N/A

It is assumed that all works will be carried out by a competent contractor
working, where appropriate, to an approved method statement

Total of developable area 12.86 ha
Quantity Breakdown:

Open space area & Verge 3.12ha
Carriageway surface 2.04ha
(including Shared Surface and On Road Car Parking Spaces)

Plots 5.65ha
Proposed Structural Planting 0.67 ha

(Woodland/Scrub planting)

Proposed Attenuation Ponds 0.81ha

Dwellings Breakdown:

2BED 114 (46%)
3BED 80 (32%)
4BED 56 (22%)
Total 250
Affordable Houses (25%) 63 units
Private Car Parking Spaces 511 spaces
(Including Garage)
On-street Car Parking Spaces 116 spaces

(5% designated for disabled parking)

Car Park Spaces 40 spaces
(37 standard spaces + 3 disabled)

NOTE:

1. Asegment of Arleston Lane will be downgraded to
create a pedestrian and cyclist-only zone. Traffic willbe
diverted through the site on the main spine road, where
street design will help reduce traffic speeds.

2. An existing section of Arleston Lane will be converted to
a shared surface, which will help to reduce traffic speeds
and will create a safe environment for pedestrians and
cyclists (referto Access and Circulation Plan).

3. Asegment of Arleston Lane will be one-way forvehicles
to the north of existing properties {(Apley House, Bromley |
House, and The Paddocks), allowing traffic to flow to the
main spine read and away from the existing Arleston
Lane. Vehicles travelling east towards the existing
Arleston Lane on the secondary road will be prevented
before the corner to the existing Arleston Lane and the
one-way system. Vehicles will be required to use the in-
ternal road network to return to the development's main
spine road.

4. The need forand location of any clesignated car cluly

spaces would be defined at the Reserved Matters stage.

KEY

Red Line Boundary

Proposed Dwellings

Total 250 {2-Becl: 114; 3-Bed: 80; 4-Bed: 56)

Main Road - (5.5m. width, 3.0m. verge, 3.0m

shared footpath, 2.0m. footpath)

Secondary Road - (5m. width, 2.0m. and 1.5m.

verge and 2.0m. footpath)

Tertiary Road (Shared Surface) - (5m. wicdth at
junction, 3.5 passing place) No defined footpath

Featurecd Junction and Raised Crossing Points

Segment of Arleston Lane downgracled to Peclestrian

and Cycle Route

Private Car Parking

Private Garages

On Road Visitors Car Parking

LEAP {Local Equipped Area of Play)

Incidental Play Areas

Seating Areas

Cycle Storages (Private and Visitors)

Existing Woodland and Hedgerows Retained

Existing Trees Retained

Structural Planting Area (Woodland, Scruly Planting)

Streect Trees

Meacdow Grassland and Wildflowers Planting

Planting Area to Frontages

Rear Gardens

Propoased Native Hedgerow

sSUDS

Ketley Brook

Attenuation Ponds

Existing Bus Stop Relocated

Existing PRoW (Wrekin Way)

Defensive Noise Barrier

Proposed Car Park - Glendale Road
{37 Standard + 3 Disabled)

Indicative location of potential hew pedestrian
connections through existing land to be link with
existing PRoW network of the surrounding areas.

Easement through existing vegetation required
in order to facilitate the drainage cutfall to the

Ketley Brook

Existing MAST Relocated

P10 [ 13112724 Minor Amendments for Final Submission GC HA VD
PO9 04/11/24 Final Outline Masterplan GC DB VD
PO8 2510024 Layout updated following client's comment GC DB VD
PO7 22/10/24 Cutline Masterplan finalised for approval GC DB vD
PO8 15/10/24 Layout updated following client's comment GC DB VD
P05 04/10024 Layout updated following public consultation GC DB VD
PO4 31/05/24 Minor amends GC HA VD
PO3 21/05/24 Minor amends following PD comments GC DB VD
P02 13/05/24 Issue for Comments GC DB VD
P01 19/06/23 First Issue GC DB VD
Rev. Date Description By Chk'd | App'd
Drawing Status Suitability

Two Chamberlain Square

kinsRealis

Tel: +44 (0)121 483 5757

Birmingham Fax:
;\;egmldlands www.atkinsrealis.com
© AtkinsRéalis (2024)
A Client
Telford & Wrekin
COUNCIL
Project Title
LAWLEY WEST
A Drawing Title

ILLUSTRATIVE MASTERPLAN

' Scale 1:1000 |

5207798-ATK-ELS-XX-LL-DR-000004

Scale Designed Drawn Checked Authorised
1:1000 GC GC DB VD
I Original Size Date Date Date Date
- AO 19/06/23 19/06/23 19/06/23 19/06/23
30m . 40; | _I Drawing Number Revision

P10




This page is intentionally left blank



100

Millimetres

10

Ll

I

oV, @olktd

——Lho T Wrekin Wa

e

T et —
-_'|¢IB_C|I P65

| il
| 2B_A

| | | | P69

| L | P50 e |
| | L P 570

P85 ~ [pgs | |
T pgs 1

| ™) e L __ R
el ) [P0 T pgg |
P79 [
by P7a | = II
o . 1.28_;_ R |
P78 a I"II
W PYE |
P77 pr7 |
e |
lire P77 | L
= - L tl
i P76 | /A
= 2 .I |
S
P75 | prs |

|

[— o
2B B P95 |

| :Br Paal |

| laB_g P

:P! | | P14

-
f . P13 'i___'l_ |
| !'-"_‘i1_-‘1r = |E1J"_!

| ;B__A p118

| SIS,
l T p1a (P19

DO NOT SCALE

SAFETY, HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL
INFORMATION

| B e — | Ty 2 i - I
In addition to the hazards/risks normally associated with the types of work
detailed on this drawing, note the following:
Unit Area Total Area | Built-in | GIFA | Total GIFA | Units [CONSTRUCTION
Code Storeys No. Bedrooms No. Beds spaces (persons) CONSTRUCTIO
storage b i
SQM SQM sQM SQM No - IMAINTENANCE/CLEANING
_|NA
|DECOMMISSIONING/DEMOLITION
2B_A 2 2 3 43 2322 2.0 70 3780 54 N/A
2B_B 2 2 4 43 2580 20 30 4800 60 Itis assumed that all works WEH be carried out by a competent contractor
working, where appropriate, to an approved method statement
Partial tot. 4902 8580 114
KEY
—_— Red Line Boundary
3B_A 2 3 4 50 800 25 84 1344 16
3B_B 2 3 4 52 1872 25 84 3024 36 ]
3B_C 2 3 4 68 1904 25 84 2352 28
il 2B_A - Semi Detached
Partial tot. 4576 6720 80 Footprint 43 m2-GIFA 70 m?2- 2 Stories
.
4B_A 2 4 5 60 780 3.0 o7 1261 13 {
4B_B 2 A 5 71 1278 3.0 97 1746 18 2B_B - Semi Detached _
Footprint 43 m?-GIFA 80 m?- 2 Stories
4B_C 2 4 5 62 1550 3.0 o7 2425 25 ‘
Partial tot. 3608 5432 56 =
sk 3B_A - SemiDetached OR Detached
i Footprint 50 m2- GIFA 84 m?2- 2 Stories
Total 13086 20732 250
3B_B - Semi Detached OR Detached
8o Footprint 52 m2-GIFA 84 m?2- 2 Stories
3B_C - Semi Detached OR Dstached
i Footprint 68 m2-GIFA 84 m?- 2 Stories
FY
4B_A - Semidetached
i J Footprint 80 m?-GIFA 97 m?- 2 Stories

?

3

!
A2
oo 4B_C

" ?\'5" b

3.1—]
4B_B - Detached (Corner)
i Footprint 71 m?- GIFA 97 m?- 2 Stores
] -~

4B_C - Detached (Corner)
i Footprint 62 m2-GIFA 97 m?- 2 Stories

s e e e

10m Om 10m 20m 30m 40m 50m 60m 70m

Scale 1:1000
P03 | 14/01/25 Minor Amendments GC HA VD
P02 [ 1312724 Minor Amendments for Final Submission GC HA VD
PO1 04/11/24 Final Outline Masterplan GC DB VD
Rev. Date Description By Chk'd | App'd
Drawing Status Suitability

Two Chamberlain Square

kinsRealis

Tel: +44 (0)121 483 5757

Birmingham Fax:
g\;egwldmnds www.atkinsrealis.com
© AtkinsRéalis (2024)
Client
Telford & Wrekin
COUNCIL
Project Title

LAWLEY WEST

Drawing Title

DWELLING DETAILS AND SCHEDULE PLAN

Scale Designed Drawn Checked Authorised
1:1000 GC GC DB VD
: Original Size Date Date Date Date
AO 19/06/23 19/06/23 19/06/23 19/06/23
Drawing Mumber Revision
5207798-ATK-ELS-XX-LL-DR-000008 P03




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 7b

TWC/2025/0314

Land adjacent Oak View, Sugden Lane, Sugden, Telford, Shropshire

Full planning application for a Gypsy/Traveller site with 2no. mobile homes and
hardstanding (Retrospective) *** Planning Statement received ***

APPLICANT RECEIVED
Gaia Planning, J Horton 02/05/2025
PARISH WARD

Rodington Wrockwardine

THIS APPLICATION IS BEING HEARD AT PLANNING COMMITTEE AS THE
PROPOSAL HAS BEEN REFERRED BY THE WARD MEMBER CLLR GARETH
THOMAS.

https://secure.telford.gov.uk/planning/pa-
applicationsummary.aspx?ApplicationNumber=TWC/2025/0314

1. SUMMARY RECOMMENDATIONS

1.1 Itisrecommended that DELEGATED AUTHORITY be granted to the
Development Management Service Delivery Manager to GRANT FULL
PLANNING PERMISSION subject to conditions and informatives.

2. SITE AND SURROUNDINGS

2.1 The site lies along Sugden Lane located within the rural north west of the
Borough, sitting approximately one mile from Rodington to the south west and
Longdon Upon Tern to the north east as the nearest villages, 5 miles from
Wellington and 8.8 miles from Telford Town Centre to the south east.

2.2  The application site has been subject to a series of planning applications over
recent years, with its established equestrian use stemming from a 2021
consent affording the change of use from agricultural land to equestrian land
including the erection of a stable block, and the creation of vehicular access
with associated gravel parking, turning area, fencing and gates. Further
expansion of the equestrian use was sought through a 2024 permission
entailing the erection of a store shed, tack room with mess facilities and
construction of ménage. Both permissions have been subject to a condition
for personal use only and not as a commercial enterprise.

2.3  The parcel of land forming the application site amounts to 0.23ha sitting off
Sugden Lane at the frontage of the wider equestrian site, with gated access
then through to the stable yard and field beyond. The boundary treatments
comprise a mix of fencing and soft landscape hedging treatments. Through
the latest planning application the land was permitted to comprise grass
paddock, store shed, tack room with mess facilities and ménage. Officers are
mindful that given the retrospective nature of the application, the position of
equestrian elements is shown divergent to approved plans — for instance the

Page 51


https://secure.telford.gov.uk/planning/pa-applicationsummary.aspx?ApplicationNumber=TWC/2025/0314
https://secure.telford.gov.uk/planning/pa-applicationsummary.aspx?ApplicationNumber=TWC/2025/0314

2.4

ménage now sitting in a more southerly position in the site plan provided. This
is being taken up separately with the Applicant.

A mix of arable and grazing land surrounds the site, with the nearest
residences comprising ‘Beech Croft’ 62m to the north east, ‘Overdale’ sitting
approximately 86m to the west, and ‘The Marsh’ 120m to the south east
(measurements comprising all site boundary to residence boundary
distances).

3. PROPOSAL

3.1

3.2

3.3

This application seeks full planning permission for a Gypsy/Traveller site
comprising 2no. mobile homes and hardstanding with space for two touring
caravans (one sitting adjacent to each of the mobile homes), the Application
Form identifies that the proposal is retrospective in nature.

Access to the site is from the north eastern corner of the site via a boarded
timber gate.

The application is accompanied by the Application Form, Location Plan, Site
Layout, and Planning Statement.

4. PLANNING HISTORY

4.1

4.2

4.3

TWC/2023/0263 - Erection of store shed, tack room with mess facilities and
construction of ménage (Part Retrospective). Full Granted 01/02/2024

TWC/2022/0904 - Outline application for the erection of 1no. dwelling with all
matters reserved. Full Refused 12/12/2022

TWC/2021/0011 - Change of use from agricultural land to equestrian land to
include the erection of a stable block and the creation of vehicular access with
associated gravel parking, turning area, fencing and gates (Part-
Retrospective) ***AMENDED DESCRIPTION AND PLANS SUBMITTED****,
Full Granted 17/06/2021.

5. RELEVANT POLICY DOCUMENTS

5.1

5.2

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and Planning Policy for Traveller
Sites (PPTS)

Telford and Wrekin Local Plan (2011-2031)

SP3 Rural area
SP4 Presumption in favour of sustainable development

Page 52



5.3

HO8 Meeting the needs of the Gypsy and Traveller Community
HO9 Gypsy and Traveller Developments

NE1 Biodiversity and Geodiversity

C3 Impact of development on highways

BE1 Design criteria

ER11 Sewerage systems and water quality

ER12 Flood risk management

Telford & Wrekin Local Plan 2020-2040 (Regulation 19 Review):

The Council are currently at the Regulation 19 Stage of the Local Plan review
and therefore, limited weight is given to the relevant policies within this
document (https://www.telfordandwrekinlocalplan.co.uk/site/index.php).

S2 Nature conservation

S5 Mitigating and adapting to climate change

S6 Healthy stronger communities

CC1 Sustainable construction and carbon reduction

CC2 Renewable energy in developments

CC4 Water re-use, conservation efficiency and quality
CC5 Flood risk management and sustainable drainage systems
CC6 Managing air quality

NEL1 Biodiversity and geodiversity

NE2 Trees, hedgerows and woodlands

NE3 Biodiversity net gain

HO8 Gypsy, traveller and showpeoples accommodation
DD1 Design criteria

ST3 Impact of development on highways

ST5 Electric vehicle (EV) infrastructure and parking design.

6. NEIGHBOUR REPRESENTATIONS

6.1

The application has been publicised through direct neighbour notification. The
Local Planning Authority has received one neighbour representation
guestioning the water supply serving the site, and ensuring that this proposal
would not deteriorate the water pressure, together with seven neighbour
representations objecting to the scheme (six anonymously), the following
summarised issues were raised:

Non-compliant with local and national planning policy, application does not
provide justification or evidence of need, Telford & Wrekin Council have a
policy for providing 2 Gypsy/Traveller sites, and there are already 2 such
approved sites in existence

No detail of how many individuals will potentially be on the site, the number of
vehicles and type that will be used, or how the site may develop

Page 53


https://www.telfordandwrekinlocalplan.co.uk/site/index.php

7.1

7.2

e Inappropriate location - small hamlet with no local services, public transport,
or infrastructure to support new residential use

e Agricultural land which should be preserved and not developed

e Previous refusal for residential, planning grounds still apply

e Green belt land being used for a business

e Greenfield site

e Set precedent for further development activity on site

e Changes to site have already had negative visual impact, static caravans
would add to this

e Loss of residential amenity, site being used for construction company with
significant traffic movement, highway safety concerns including application
does not say how many people/caravans will inhabit the site or vehicles

e Impact on wildlife — floodlights on barn constantly on, not bat friendly,
Biodiversity Net Gain required

e Contravention permitted use for horses

e Frontage fencing out of character.

STATUTORY REPRESENTATIONS

Councillor Gareth Thomas — Call in — Object

e Application not within planned development boundaries of revised Telford &
Wrekin Local Plan. Should this go ahead, could set a precedent for further
builds on this site and others outside of Local Plan boundaries

e No mention of infrastructure like sewage which would be vital for permanent
chalet homes on site

e Access issues — tight access lane which causes difficulties for vehicles to
pass each other safely, this route is well used by walkers from existing
developments with poor visibility when entering and exiting the lane, believe
that the visibility distance from the field entrance is insufficient that could
increase the chance of an RTC at the field entrance.

Rodington Parish Council — Object

e Intrusion onto a greenfield site

e Development sets a precedent for building in the area along the whole length
of field towards Sugden

e Development sets a precedent for retrospective applications without
consulting with Parish Council and other consultees

e Concerns over the lack of details regarding utilities including removal of
sewage, provision of electricity etc.

e Development is not consistent with Local Plan

e Concerns regarding highways due to the exit entering onto a narrow country
lane which raises visibility issues.

Page 54



7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

Highways — No objection

Ecology — No objection
Request informative guiding Biodiversity Net Gain not required

Drainage — Support, subject to conditions

Shropshire Fire Service — Comment

As part of the planning process, consideration should be given to the
information contained within Shropshire Fire and Rescue Service’s “Fire
Safety Guidance for Commercial and Domestic Planning Applications”

document.

8. APPRAISAL

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

Having regard to the development plan policy and other material
considerations including comments received during the consultation process,
the planning application raises the following main issues:

. Principle of development

. Impact on the amenity of adjacent properties / uses
. Design and Layout

. Highways impacts

. Drainage

. Ecology

. Other matters

Principle of Development

The application site is located within the rural area of the Borough, the site is
not allocated on the Adopted Proposals Map of the Local Plan with the
established use of the site being for equine purposes. Given the change of
use nature of the proposal, applications for Gypsy & Travellers Sites
necessitate consideration of TWLP Policies HO8 and HO9, together with the
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and associated Planning Policy
for Traveller Sites (PPTS).

Related to HO8 and HO9 these are a specific form of housing policy, outside
of what the previous refused residential application would be considered
against, this is having regard to local representation raising that the previous
grounds for refusal remain relevant here.

The NPPF identifies that to support the Government’s objective of significantly
boosting the supply of homes, it is important “that the needs of groups with

Page 55



8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

specific housing requirements are addressed. Within this context of
establishing need, the size, type and tenure of housing needed for different
groups in the community should be assessed and reflected in planning
policies”. It goes on to state and that these groups should include inter alia
Travellers. The Planning Policy for Traveller Sites (PPTS) then sets out how
Travellers needs should be addressed through Local Plan coverage,
identifying need and site specific factors.

Policy HO8 of the existing Local Plan sets out the requirement for meeting the
needs over the plan period 2011-2031, and states that the Council will support
the provision of 32 permanent pitches — essentially unmet need drawing from
the 2014 Gypsy & Traveller Accommodation Assessment (GTAA) which has
subsequently been updated. Drawing upon the latest evidence in the 2023
GTAA the Council have an identified unmet need of 26 pitches in the Borough
through Policy HO9 of the emerging Local Plan. It outlines that 20 of these
pitches would be provided through expansion of two existing sites, with unmet
need remaining.

Current TWLP Policy HO9 identifies a series of criteria where the Council will
support a planning application for Gypsy and Traveller accommodation where
it performs positively against. The first of is that the proposal can be
supported by local shops, community facilities, public transport connections,
and local employment opportunities. The site is located in the rural area, one
mile from the village of Rodington which has a public house, village hall and
play area, Church, and a bus service Monday to Friday running between
Wellington and Newport via Rodington which operates six times a day
between the hours of circa 8:00am-8pm (service 103); and one mile from the
village of Longdon Upon Tern with a public house, village hall, Church, and a
school time Monday to Friday bus service between Wellington and the rural
settlement of Ellerdine (service 104) via the village. Remaining criteria of HO9
will be addressed through subsequent sections of this report.

The PPTS identifies the definition of Gypsies and Travellers in Annex 1, and
appreciating the concern that the Applicant has not evidenced that they satisfy
this defined status, it has been recorded that both the Applicant (occupying
the first mobile home with his partner) and his son (occupying the second
mobile home with his family) are Romany Gypsies who fulfil the definition of
Gypsies and Travellers. The Applicant grew up on a Gypsy / Traveller site,
travelling with his family and working with his grandfather collecting scrap and
trading in horses. Due to family commitments, it is guided that much of his
current trade, as a groundworker, is now more local, however, he still travels
regularly with his family for work, including attending horse fairs to trade in
horses. The LPA is satisfied that the definition in Annex 1 of the PPTS has
been satisfied.

The Applicant has further (confidentially) identified personal circumstances as
to the need to relocate to this site with little notice, this includes welfare needs
of a child to have a safe and stable place to stop from which to access health
services. The personal circumstances of the applicant and their family sit in

Page 56



8.9

8.10

8.11

8.12

8.13

8.14

the context of the following three legal principles of Gypsies and Travellers:
The Human Rights Act, The Best interests of the Child and the Public Sector
Equality Duty, and is a material consideration under paragraph 25. of the
PPTS.

Subject to criteria of TWLP Policy HO9 being met, together with site specific
considerations of the PPTS, the application is considered acceptable in
principle.

Notably HO9 does not preclude proposals in the rural area given commentary
around the site sitting outside of Local Plan boundaries. This land is not
Green Belt land noting local representation, which would trigger specific policy
considerations set out in the PPTS.

The grievance raised in local representation as to the retrospective nature of
this application is recognised, Officers would however highlight that the LPA
are unable to refuse an application solely because it has been applied for
retrospectively, and the Authority are obliged to determine an application
before them against planning policy. Further, this application does not set a
precedent for development building along the whole length of the field, nor is
the applicant required to identify any future proposal through an application,
each planning application is considered on its merits.

Impact on the amenity of adjacent properties / uses

A mix of arable and grazing land surrounds the site, with the nearest
residences of ‘Beech Croft 62m to the north east, ‘Overdale’ sitting
approximately 86m to the west, and ‘The Marsh’ 120m to the south east
(measurements comprising all site boundary to residence boundary distances
as opposed to any associated fields).

Given the distances entailed, Officers are satisfied that there is sufficient
distance separation present between the proposed units of accommodation
and the neighbouring residential properties. The structures subject to this
application are single storey and given the boundary treatments, would not
result in any issues of overlooking or loss of privacy. As such, Officers are
satisfied that the proposal will not have a significantly detrimental impact upon
the amenity of neighbouring properties in accordance with TWLP Policies
HO9 and BE1. This is together with the modest scale and position of the site
that it does not dominate the nearest settled community as required for sites
sitting in rural settings in the PPTS.

Reference is made to lighting concerns within representation on this
application, given the setting of the site a lighting condition to ensure the
protection of residential amenity is considered appropriate here, with any
existing lighting associated with the equine use to be checked by the LPA
given the imposition of a lighting condition on the previous equine consents.

Design and Layout

Page 57



8.15

8.16

8.17

8.18

8.19

8.20

Design details comprise the specifics presented on the Site Plan indicating the
position of the 2no. mobile homes. The adjacent driveways punctuated by an
area per unit for a touring caravan, with surrounding grassed landscaping
largely bound by a 1.2m boundary post and rail fence. This is with the
exception of the northern frontage boundary which has a panelled timber gate,
close board fence (this was established to be permitted development through
previous applications) and established hedging positioned between this and
Sugden Lane. Visibility of the accommodation would be limited to a section of
roof only, given this and the landscaped frontage, the arrangement is
considered acceptable.

Elevation drawings are not required for caravans, in such instances the
provision of units on site is governed by the Caravan Sites Act 1968 which
defines what constitutes a caravan, subject to units sitting within this definition
and would be controlled by condition, the level of detail is sufficient.

The site affords sufficient amenity and parking for the units, and is not subject
to harmful air or noise environmental factors; such that the proposal does not
provide accommodation of an unacceptable quality for residents occupying
the site in accordance with TWLP HO9 and the PPTS.

Highway Impacts

Within representation, the nature of Sugden Lane in providing appropriate
access has been raised. Here it is confirmed that the vast majority of Sugden
Lane width ranges between 5m and 7.5m, which is more than adequate to
allow two vehicles to pass one another safely. Whilst appreciated that there
are a few sections of Sugden Lane where that width is reduced, the number of
vehicular trips that the 2no. mobile homes would generate daily would be
minimal, and does not derive a potential capacity issue and unlikely to cause
any adverse highway safety issues.

Relating to the access into the site, this now stands at approximately 14m in
width, is hard surfaced and with gates set back 12m from the carriageway
edge. Visibility to the right out of the access can be achieved within the
highway, in excess of 60m to the adjacent bend. Visibility to the left out of the
access provides visibility in excess of 90m from a driver's eye height. Review
on site has identified that the nature of the road in proximity to the site does
not lend itself to vehicle speeds anywhere near the national speed limit,
therefore the visibility splays being provided are requisite with national design
guidance. Officers are satisfied that the proposal provides an appropriate
means of access in accordance with TWLP Policy HO9 and C3.

Reference is made within representation to a commercial vehicle operator
license for the site, and concerns relating to this. The site is permitted for
equestrian use through previous planning applications, and not business use.
The current application does not seek change of use to a business use, with
the site being kept under ongoing review to ensure no business applies by
Planning Enforcement. The Operators Licence simply allows the parking of a

Page 58



8.21

vehicle which the applicant uses for his work all of which is undertake off site
and does not evidence that a business is operating from the site.

Bearing the above in mind, the proposal is not considered to result in an
unacceptable highway safety impact or severe residual cumulative impact on
the road network, and therefore would not warrant refusal on highways
grounds that could be substantiated at appeal.

Drainage

8.22 The application material advises that surface water is conveyed to soakaway

8.23

8.24

8.25

8.26

and foul drainage to an existing septic tank. Given the setting of the site, the
arrangement is considered acceptable subject to conditioning around detailed
coverage, including the acceptability of the capacity and condition of the
septic tank and proof that the condition of the drainage ditch is acceptable.
The site is located away from areas at high risk of flooding in accordance with
TWLP Policy HO9, ER12 and the PPTS.

Ecology

The proposal has not necessitated the submission of ecological surveys nor
obligated in regards to Biodiversity Net Gain requirements, an informative
confirming the latter is duly requested.

Other matters

Representation makes reference to the application providing no detail of how
many individuals will potentially be on the site, the number of vehicles and
type that will be used. Here the applicant has confirmed that one pitch relates
to the Applicant and his wife, and the second pitch the Applicant’s adult son,
his wife and grandchild; essentially, though the maximum number of parties
would be dictated by the accommodation available, and in such instances
needing to fit within the realms of the Caravan Sites Act 1968. It is considered
appropriate to limit the number of touring caravans on site used as
accommodation to retain control here.

Relating to vehicles, the Application Form identifies two car parking spaces,
even if there were a greater number of vehicles, given further parking space
exists within the site, the Local Highways Authority is satisfied with the level of
parking. The Local Highways Authority is satisfied that the number of
vehicular trips that the 2no. mobile homes would generate daily would be
minimal. The Local Planning Authority is not able to dictate the type of
vehicles used to access the site, the control lies around the form of use taking
place, here conditioned for Gypsy & Traveller use, with the remaining land still
controlled for equine use under the earlier consents.

Relating to loss of amenity through the occurrence, and potential increased
frequency of, a pony and trap event this is not a material planning

Page 59



8.27

consideration with, this is activity taking place on the adopted highway which
should be regulated by the Police.

Concerns around the provision of services is raised, notably the site already
benefits from mains electricity, and is served by a borehole. Where this relates
to the extraction of less than 20,000 litres per day this does not require a
water abstraction license. If these volumes were exceeded they would be
managed by the Environment Agency, and therefore sits outside of the
influence of the Local Planning Authority through this application.

9. CONCLUSIONS

9.1

It is noted that the site is located in the rural area, a mile from services in
Longdon Upon Tern and Rodington. The proposal will provide accommodation
of an acceptable quality for residents, the proposed change of use to allow the
siting of two mobile homes with space for two touring caravans would not
unacceptably prejudice the amenities of adjoining or adjacent occupiers, with
the boundary of closest dwelling positioned 62m away from the boundary of
the application site. The proposal makes provision for an appropriate means
of vehicular access to and from the public highway. Through existing drainage
provision and capacity details controlled through condition, the LPA is
satisfied that suitable provision can be made for access to essential utilities
and other services. The site sits behind an established hedge, given the
topography, and permission for equine development already on the site, the
Authority are satisfied that the siting of two mobile homes with two touring
caravans will not detract from the rural character and appearance of the
locality. The site is located away from areas at high risk of flooding, and in a
safe and secure location with suitable access from the emergency services.
There are no technical objections received to this application. It is therefore
considered that the proposal is compliant with Policies HO8 and HO9 of the
Telford & Wrekin Local Plan 2011-2031 and the guidance contained within the
NPPF and associated PPTS.

10.DETAILED RECOMMENDATION

10.1

Based on the conclusions above, the recommendation to the Planning
Committee on this application is that DELEGATED AUTHORITY be granted
to the Development Management Service Delivery Manager to GRANT
PLANNING PERMISSION (with the authority to finalise any matter including
conditions or any later variations) subject to the following conditions and
informatives (with authority to finalise conditions and reasons for approval to
be delegated to the Development Management Service Delivery Manager):-

B061a Foul and surface water
B0O79 Capacity and condition of the septic tank

BO79 Proof acceptable condition of the drainage ditch

Page 60



B145 Lighting Plan

C038 Development in accordance with plans

D01 Removal of permitted development rights

D06 Gypsy & Traveller Use

DCustom Maximum caravan numbers Informatives:
132 Fire Authority

I35Custom Equine S73 variation application required
I39h Biodiversity Net Gain

140 Conditions

141 Reason for Grant

RANPPF1 Approval — NPPF.

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



g obed

<

[

Rodington
Vineyard

g 7)

64.0m

61.7m

Ordnance|Survey (c) Crown Copyright 2025. All rights reserved. Licephce number 100037431

I

'ack\

Rock

Cottages

|
MCT Architectural Services

1 The Coach House . Cwmdale . Church Stretton . Shropshire . SY6 6JL
Tel: 01694 328679 Mob: 07968 497559 E-Mail: mctarch@yahoo.co.uk

Client Mr J Horton
Project Oakview
Sugden Lane
Rodington
Telford
TF6 6NB
Drawing

Location Plan

Drg No 2025/P1

Scale 1;2500@A4 Date 14 Jan 2025



This page is intentionally left blank



Existing1.2m _ —
Post and rail fence

Manege

Existing

Store

Page 65

Stable Yard

4=

Existing Sewerage Septic Tank
4000 Litre

Ordnance Survey (c) Crown Copyright 2025.
All rights reserved. Licence number 100037431

MCT Architectural Services
|

1 The Coach House . Cwmdale . Church Stretton . Shropshire . SY6 6JL
Tel: 01694 328679 Mob: 07968 497559 E-Mail: mctarch@yahoo.co.uk

Client Mr J Horton

Project Oakview
Sugden Lane
Rodington
Telford
TF6 6NB

Drawing Site Plan

Drg No 2025/P2A Scale 1;500 @A3 Date 30 Apr 2025


AutoCAD SHX Text_583
Drg No 2025/P2A

AutoCAD SHX Text_584
Date 30 Apr 2025

AutoCAD SHX Text_585
Scale 1;500 @A3

AutoCAD SHX Text_586
Project

AutoCAD SHX Text_587
Client

AutoCAD SHX Text_588
Drawing


This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	6 Terms of Reference 2025/26
	Appendix A - Planning Committee Terms of Reference 2025/26

	7 Planning Applications for Determination
	7a TWC/2025/0022 - Land off, Arleston Lane (South side), Arleston, Telford, Shropshire
	1. Location Plan
	Sheets and Views
	5207798-ATK-ELS-XX-LL-DR-000001


	2. Illustrative Masterplan
	3. Dwelling Details and Schedule Plan

	7b TWC/2025/0314 - Land adjacent Oak View, Sugden Lane, Sugden, Telford, Shropshire
	1. Location Plan
	2. Proposed Site Plan
	Sheets and Views
	Layout2




